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Narrative Report 

Introduction 

Organisational overview and external environment 

Belfast City Council remains the largest of Northern Ireland's 11 local authorities, serving a population of 
340,220 residents, as well as the thousands of people who travel to the city to work, study and visit each 
day. 

With a net budgeted expenditure of £159.9m in 2018/19, Belfast City Council's 2,305 employees, led 
by 60 councillors across 10 electoral areas, carry out six principal roles: 

)> a civic leadership role to ensure a better quality of life for our citizens; 
)> provision of a number of services and facilities including planning, parks and leisure, refuse 

and recycling and community services; 
)> promoting the arts, tourism, community and economic development; 
)> regulating and licensing activities relating to environmental health, consumer protection, 

building and public safety; 
)> a representative role on a number of bodies and boards, including education and health; 

and 
)> a consultative role in relation to functions conducted by other government bodies and 

agencies on issues such as planning, water, roads and housing. 

With our role in leading community planning in Belfast we have published the Belfast Agenda 2017-
2035, outlining our priorities for the City which will require collaboration with key partners to ensure 
delivery of these ambitions for the City. 

The key services delivered by the Council are outlined below under our Operational Model and the 
key objectives of the Council are outlined below under Strategic Performance. The key deliverables 
for year ended 31 March 2019 reflect the priorities articulated by local people and relate to the 
council's functions as both a civic leader and service provider. 
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Operational Model 

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the standard 
expected by its ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant committees for approval 
regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost. This helps the Council understand 
how much money is required and, taking account of other sources of income, what 'rate' needs to be 
set for the city to raise the required money. 

Throughout the year the Council reports to the relevant committees on the financial performance 
against agreed budget for each committee. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to 
cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The majority of the variance between budget and actual expenditure is disclosed in the Expenditure 
and Funding analysis in Note 2 and is mainly due to accounting adjustments that are required for the 
purposes of preparing the financial statements, such as depreciation and impairments, fair value 
adjustments on investment properties and !AS 19 accounting adjustments. There are also variances 
due to reclassification of income and expenditure to other income and expenditure for financial 
accounting purposes such as rental and financing activities. 

Each committee is responsible for the delivery of key services to the Council and the main services 
included in each committee is as follows: 

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

This committee is responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Council through the 
development of its Corporate Plan and other key corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. 
The net expenditure of this committee includes Legal and Civic Services, Finance and Resources, 
City Organisation Structure and Major Projects and Corporate Priorities with Human Resources and 
Good Relations. The net expenditure budget for this committee for these services in 201 B/19 is 
£41.3m with actual net expenditure for the year amounting to £40.1 m. The graph below outlines the 
services delivered within this committee and performance against budget. These amounts do not 
include the accounting adjustments that are required to be included in the net expenditure for this 
committee in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £66.9m 
for this Committee includes the accounting adjustments that are required for preparing the financial 
statements. 
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City Growth and Regeneration Committee 

This committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies, policies, 
programmes and projects directed to the regeneration and growth of the City in the context of 
outcomes agreed in the Community and Corporate plans and other corporate strategies. The net 
expenditure of the committee includes Economic Initiatives and City Regeneration, City Events and 
Venues including Off-Street Car Parking, Place and Economy and Parks Estates and Zoo. The total 
budget for net expenditure for this committee for these services was £17.4m and actual net 
expenditure was £17.4m. The graph below outlines the services delivered within this committee and 
performance against budget. These amounts do not include the accounting adjustments that are 
required to be included in the net expenditure for this committee in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £23.3m for this Committee includes the accounting 
adjustments that are required for preparing the financial statements. 
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People and Communities Committee 
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This committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies, policies, 
programmes and projects aimed at improving life at a local level in the context of the outcomes 
agreed in the community and corporate plans and other corporate strategies. The net expenditure of 
the committee includes Cleansing, Waste Management and vehicles, Parks, Cemeteries and Leisure 
Centres, Environmental Health, Neighbourhood and Development and Community Services. The 
total budget for net expenditure for this committee for these services was £78.8m and actual net 
expenditure was £79.1 m. The graph below outlines the services delivered within this committee and 
performance against budget. These amounts do not include the accounting adjustments that are 
required to be included in the net expenditure for each committee in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £96.4m for this Committee includes the accounting 
adjustments that are required for preparing the financial statements. 
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These committees are responsible for delivery of all of the Council's planning functions and policy and 
legislation in relation to licensing issues. The net expenditure includes Planning and Building Control 
services. The total budget for net expenditure for this committee for these services was £1. 7m and 
actual net expenditure was £1 .6m. The graph below outlines the services delivered within this 
committee and performance against budget. These amounts do not include the accounting 
adjustments that are required to be included in the net expenditure for each committee in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £2.3m for this Committee 
includes the accounting adjustments that are required for preparing the financial statements. 
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Further information regarding the variances between planned and actual expenditure is included in 
the individual committee reporting for 2018/19. Total net expenditure budget of £159.9m includes the 
above services budget of £139.2m and the capital financing budget of £20. 7m. 
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Governance 
The work of Belfast City Council is overseen by the committee structure outlined below and detailed further in our Governance 
Statement on pages 14-26. This Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19 highlights the Council's governance 
arrangements during the year and how significant governance issues are being addressed and actions implemented. A 
programme management framework is in place to manage both revenue and capital streams of activity for the Council. 
Directors and Members have oversight in accordance with the terms of reference for the relevant Committee as well as finance 
reports covering all aspects of Council expenditure being presented to Committee on a quarterly basis. The committee 
structure is as follows and in addition a Brexit Committee has been established and is responsible for researching, monitorlng 
and reviewing the financial, resource or operational impact upon the Council and the district as a result of the UK's leaving the 
European Union and for making recommendations to Council on such issues {or to the relevant Standing Committee where 

appropriate). The first meeting took place in August 2018: 

Cl'-'! Growth and Regeneratron Committee 

Licensing Committee 
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Strategic Performance 

The strategic performance of the Council is incorporated in the Belfast City Council's Corporate Plan 
2017-21, which includes the Improvement Plan. The Belfast Agenda is published on the Council's 
website and outlines the Council's ambitions for the City by 2035 as well as the immediate priorities 
for: 

)> Growing the economy 
)> Living here 
)> City Development 
)> Working and learning 

The Council outlines its priorities within the Corporate Plan 2017-21. These priorities cascade from 
the longer term outcomes identified in the Council's Community Plan (Belfast Agenda). These 
priorities are based upon extensive external and internal analysis, including key socio-economic data, 
analysis of the plans and strategies impacting the city and its communities, performance information 
and political engagement. 

The Council has also incorporated six key improvement objectives included within the Improvement 
Plan to ensure continuous improvement in the exercise of the Council's functions and alignment with 
the work the Council is doing to formulate the priorities of the Belfast Agenda. 

These six key objectives are: 

)> Build the city's position as a magnet for Foreign Direct Investment 

)> Make Belfast a great place to do business by supporting entrepreneurs and business starts 

)> Deliver an integrated approach to employment and skills 

)> Design and deliver programmes to address health inequalities in the city 

)> Deliver the integrated tourism strategy to increase numbers of leisure and business tourists 

~ Deliver city centre regeneration and investment projects 

An annual performance assessment of progress against these objectives is contained within the 
Corporate Performance Assessment Report to include details of the Council's performance against 
statutory performance indicators set by the Department. 
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Financial Statements 

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2019 is as set out in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in the 
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement. 

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2019 (the Code) and the 
Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 12/2019. lt is the purpose of this 
foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in relation to the Council. 

This Statement of Accounts explains Belfast City Council's finances during the financial year 2018/19 
and its financial position at the end of that year. lt follows approved accounting standards and is 
necessarily technical in parts. 

Group Accounts 

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group 
financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
Belfast City Council have prepared group financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 
2019 to include Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Limited ( BWUH) and Belfast City Council's 
contribution to Beltel LLP in relation to the redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Building. The 
results of Beltel LLP are included in the group financial statements. The results of Belfast Gasworks 
Management Co Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2019 are not deemed material to Belfast City 
Council accounts and as such are not included In the group financial statements. 

The Movement in Reserves Statement 

This Statement, as set out on page 37, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held 
by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services' line 
shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Summary (CIES). These are different from the statutory 
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net 
Increase/Decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund 
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
The group movement in reserves statement on page 113 includes the reserves of BWUH limited, 
contributing to an increase of £6.5k on the Group General Fund. 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement, as set out on page 38, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from 
taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be 
different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The group comprehensive income and expenditure statement on page 114 includes the 
consolidated income and expenditure of BWUH Ltd. 

The Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 39, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the 
Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by 
the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of 
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, 
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use 
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(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay 
debt). The second category of reserves are those that the authority is not able to use to provide 
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for 
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services 
if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. Due to 
the review of the accounting policy for Community Assets and subsequent restatement of the relevant 
balances, there are three balance sheets included on page 39. The group balance sheet on page 
115 includes relevant balances for BWUH ltd and Beltel LLP. 

The Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the 
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of 
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations 
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services 
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been 
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers 
of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. The group cashflow statement on page 116 includes the 
cash and cash equivalents of BWUH Ltd, Gas pension Fund and the Council's interests in Beltel LLP. 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

The resourcing of the Council's activities is outlined in the Annual Report, demonstrating the funding 
available and what services this funding provided for 2018/19. 

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how the 
funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rates, fees and charges) for the year has 
been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the 
Council in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The main services provided 
under each committee are summarised in this note and performance against budget is summarised in 
the Narrative Report. The main variances from budget will arise due to the accounting cost of 
providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, such as depreciation 
charges and IAS 19 pension adjustments which are not funded from taxation. These charges are 
summarised per committee in Note 2a and Note 2b. 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision­
making purposes between the Council's committees. Income and expenditure accounted for under 
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Financial performance 

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Council increased its General Fund to £25.8m. The Budget 
plans form part of the Revenue Estimates and in 2018/19 the total net expenditure budget for the 
Council was set at £159.9m. 

The Council reported £1 m under spend on service delivery at the year end. Performance against 
budget for each of the Committees is continuously monitored throughout the year. This performance 
is reported to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on a quarterly basis. The overall 
position for the year ended 31 March 2019 is mainly due to programme delays reducing expenditure 
on programme and premises costs. 

The Cost of Services on Continuing Operations of £189m as reported in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost of providing services in addition to the 
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amount to be funded from taxation. The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is £18m. 

Borrowings 

For the 2018/19 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £192m. This is based on the 
Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In conjunction with the 
Council's Capital Financing Requirement of £115m, this ensures that the Council only borrows for 
capital purposes. During the year, the Council repaid external loans of £8.87m. The Council 
borrowed £35m to fund ongoing capital projects from Department of Finance and on a short term 
basis £30m was borrowed from other Councils and repaid before year end. At 31 March 2019, the 
total amount outstanding on external loans was £62.9m, of this total £0.3m represents the outstanding 
debt of the former Belfast Corporation Services which is now the responsibility of the Northern Ireland 
Housing Executive, and on whose behalf the Council is administering the loans. 

Capital Expenditure 

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes 
allocations of £9.2m to fund capital expenditure. Expenditure on capital projects during the year 
amounted to £38.9m, the most significant expenditure was on: Lisnasharragh Leisure Centre £8.6m; 
Andersonstown Leisure Centre £8.4m; Brook Activity Centre £6.8m; Olympia Leisure Centre £2.3m; 
and the Fleet Vehicle Replacement Programme £2.9m. 

There was one significant impairment during the year, £1.6m, as detailed on page 81. Olympia 
Leisure Centre came into operation recently and its value was re-measured to depreciated 
replacement cost, the valuation basis for this type of specialised property, to reflect its current 
estimated service potential. The difference between the two methods of measurement, of historic 
cost during construction as opposed to depreciated replacement cost when in operation, resulted in 
an impairment in the first year under the current valuation basis. 

Strategy and Resource allocation 

When setting the district rate for 2019/20 consideration was given to the following key financial factors 
for the Council: 

)> The main uncontrollable cost risk to the Council in the medium term, continues to be the 
impact of externally imposed increases to the Council's pay bill, such as the nationally 
negotiated pay awards, the foundation wage increase and employer's pension contributions 
increase. These combined with inflation levels exert financial pressure on the District Rate 
which are beyond the Council's control 

)> The Council will face significant year on year increases in costs in several areas such as the 
increased revenue costs required for the implementation of the Waste Plan, financial 
contributions required under the delivery of the City Deal, increased resource requirements 
to deliver priorities under the Belfast Agenda and continued investment in large scale capital 
projects combined with the revenue costs of these assets as they become operational 

)> The Council's income streams are under risk with the uncertain political environment which 
could have an impact on both EU and Central Government funding. Work is continuing with 
Land and Property Services (LPS) and the Institute of Revenues Ratings and Valuations 
{IRRV) to provide assurances on the rates base in this challenging economic landscape 

)> The Council continues to develop its Efficiency Programme through a targeted work stream of 
activities delivering savings of £3m in 18/19 and savings of £3m in 2019/20 which have 
already been factored into the budget setting process and should help minimise the burden 
on the ratepayer of the cost pressures highlighted above. 
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Outlook 

The Council is fully aware that it is continuing to operating in a continually challenging economical and 
political environment and with the Bank Buildings fire the City's spirit and resilience was tested. The 
Council is committed to delivering business as usual and will continue with our ambitions for the City 
under the Belfast Agenda and City Deal. The Council strives to deliver at the highest of standards 
and these efforts have been recognised in the many awards achieved by the Council in the year 
ended 31 March 2019, including: 

~ Connswater Community Greenway named Community Engagement Initiative of the Year at 
British Construction Industry Awards 2018 

~ The 54th Britain in Bloom awards ceremony was held, for the first time, at Belfast Waterfront 
with Belfast awarded Gold Medal in Large City category 

~ Our Health and Wellbeing (H&WB) Cross-Council Working Group won Best Public Sector 
Wellbeing Initiative in the recent inaugural INSPIRE Workplace Wellbeing Awards 2018 and 
were finalists in the Excellence in Local Government Wellbeing initiatives. 

~ The restoration of the Tropical Ravine project which re-opened to the public in April 2018 
picked up two awards at the annual Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RI CS) Awards, 
Northern Ireland, winning both the Building Conservation category and overall Project of the 

Year. 

~ The Council's family friendly policies and initiatives have been recognised at the Employers 
for Childcare- Family Friendly Employer awards with the Council being Highly Commanded 
and runner up in large Public Sector organisation category. 

~ Belfast Waterfront won best Local Authority Tourism Initiative at the 2018 Northern Ireland 
Local Government Association (NILGA) Awards 

~ Head of Finance & Performance, Mark McBride was awarded Public Finance Professional of 
the Year 2018 at the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) NI 
annual conference 

~ St George's Market awarded Best Large Indoor Market at the Great British Market Awards 

~ First NI City Region Deal awarded - £850million investment 

The Council seeks out opportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the City, adopting 
innovative approaches to delivering services and working in partnership to ensure the City optimises 
its resources to deliver on its six key objectives. A few of the current initiatives the Council is currently 
developing are outlined below: 

~ Smart City Framework- the Council continues to adopt a leadership role to establishing a 
City Data Platform, a Smart Belfast portal which is a critical resource for a modern Belfast to 
stage challenges, promote and share learning and attract investment. This will be the 
foundation for the rates forecasting model and Planning Growth tool to encourage innovative 
solutions for increasing economic growth for the City. A new Smart Belfast competition has 
been launched for companies to explore the use of innovative digital technology and data­
driven solutions to help manage parks and open spaces. Details of the 'Amazing Spaces, 
Smart Places' Small Business Research Initiative {SBRI) challenge were unveiled at the 'Big 
Data Belfast' conference at ICC Belfast (Belfast Waterfront) which explores trends and 
opportunities emerging in Smart Cities, loT, Fintech and business analytics among other 
areas. 
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~ 100RC- Belfast is the only city in Ireland, and one of only five in the UK to have been 
selected from over 1, 000 applicant cities to participate in the 1 OD Resilient Cities Network­
pioneered by The Rockefeller Foundation (1 OORC). The aim of this network is to partner with 
cities to build resilience to the shocks and stresses of the 21st Century, share international 
challenges and lessons learned, and to build a global community of urban resilience experts. 
The funding available has allowed Belfast to appoint a Commissioner for Resilience who 
reports directly to the Chief Executive and works with our council and our partners to build our 
city's ability to plan for and manage any threats and vulnerabilities that we have as a city, 
such as weaknesses in our economy, segregation, poor infrastructure, risks of flooding and 
cyber attack. A Belfast currency will be rolled out as part of our 100 Resilient Cities 
programme later this year. 

~ City Deal- the City deal model is the UK Government's innovative strategy for building 
stronger urban and regional growth via smarter, more localised and growth focused 
investment decision-making. lt is an exciting initiative collaborating with our neighbouring 
councils, NI Executive and UK Government to deliver an integrated economic growth 
programme. An initial proposal has been developed which sets out an ambition for up to 
£1 bn investment in the city-region through a 1 0-year programme which could act as catalyst 
to lever substantial private sector investment across the region and to support economic 
resilience. Belfast Region City Deal partners have welcomed commitment of £350 million 
investment from Treasury. As part of the deal, the NI Executive is expected to add at least a 
further £350 million and councils will contribute over £1 DO million. lt is hoped the deal will 
create up to 20,000 new and better jobs alongside delivering a 10 year programme of 
inclusive economic growth - including an increase of £470m Gross Value Added (GVA). 

~ The PEACE IV Programme- is a cross-border initiative designed to support peace and 
reconciliation in Northern Ireland and the border region. Funding of £8.8m was awarded from 
the European Union PEACE IV Programme managed by the Special EU Programmes Body 
(SEUPB) and also includes funding from the Executive Office in Northern Ireland and the 
Department of Rural and Community Developmentln Ireland. In 2018/19 an additional 
£5.6million of funding was awarded through the PEACE IV programme, to promote peace and 
reconciliation across communities in the city, bringing the total amount of funding for Belfast 
to £14.4million. Belfast City Council has already commissioned a wide range of delivery 
partners to deliver PEACE IV projects under the three key themes of, 'Children and Young 
People', 'Building Positive Relations' and 'Shared Spaces and Services'. Mobilisation of the 
PEACE IV programme on the ground commenced in December 2017, with the first contract 
award in May 2018. The most recent project mobilised in July 2019. To date 12 project 
elements from a possible 15 are actively delivering on the ground. lt is envisaged that all 
outstanding project elements wi[[ be mobilised by January 2020. 

These initiatives enhance the Council's opportunities to develop services, deliver on our key 
objectives for the City and grow the City to make it a leading destination to live, work, visit and 
invest. 
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Slc:dement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The Council's Responsibilities 

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall make arrangements for the proper 
administration of its financial affairs. A council shall designate on officer of the council as its chief financial officer and these 
arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of ifs chief financial officer. 

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Commitlee. 
is required by resolution, to approve the accounts. 

These accounts were approved by the Chief Finance Officer on 20 June 2019. 

The Chief Financial Officer's Responslbllltles 

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audil) Regulations (Northern Ireland] 2015. the Chief Financial Officer is 
responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Deportment for Communities. 

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cosh flows for the financial year and the financial 
position as at the end of the financial year. 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to: 

• observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including compliance with the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting In the Uniled Kingdom 

• follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis, and 

• make judgements and estimates that ore reasonable and prudent. 

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to: 

• keep proper accounting records that are up-to-dote, and 

• take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
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Annual Governance Statement 2018/2019 

The Council's Annual Governance Statement (AGS) follows DfC accounts directions and 

where applicable, the factsheet on governance statements issued by the NIAO in 2013, and 

comprises the following sections: 

• Scope of responsibility 

• The purpose of the governance framework 

• The governance framework 

• Review of effectiveness 

• Update on the significant governance issues that were declared last year 

• Significant governance issues for the year-end 2019 

Scope of responsibility 

Belfast City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 

duty under Part 12 of the local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 to make 

arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, 

having regard to a combination of strategic effectiveness, service quality, service availability, 

fairness, sustainability, efficiency and innovation. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 

functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement, which is consistent with the 

principles of the new CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government {2016 edition). This statement explains how the Council has complied with the 

code and meets the requirements of the local Government (Accounts and Audit) 

Regulations (Northern Ireland 2015) in relation to the publication of an annual governance 

statement. 

The purpose ofthe governance framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 

which the Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 

engages with and leads its communities. lt enables the Council to monitor the achievement 

of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 

of appropriate services and value for money. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. lt cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
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aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 

of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 

objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 

they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The governance framework continues to be place at Belfast City Council for the year ending 

31st March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Governance Statement and 

statement of accounts. The following section sets out the key elements of the governance 

framework. 

The governance framework 

Our committee structure, which is based on the full council and seven standing committees 

is illustrated and described below. 

I I I , I 

( I 
I 

Strategic Policy Oty Growth and People and Planning Ucenslng I BWUH ltd 

I 

and Resources Regeneration Communities Committee Committee Shareholder's Brextt Committee 
Committee Committee Committee Committee I 

Through the work of committees, our Members oversee the work of the council. All 

committee decisions need to be ratified by the full council except where committees have 

been granted delegated authority to make decisions. 

The full council, which consists of all 60 elected representatives, is the overarching decision­

making body. 

The Strategic Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for setting the strategic 

direction of the Council through the development of its corporate plan and other key 

corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. lt will also ensure effective use of 

resources and value for money for ratepayers, and oversee the Council's relationship with a 

number of key agencies and partners. 

The City Growth and Regeneration Committee is responsible for the development and 

implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed to the 

regeneration and growth of the city in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community 

and corporate plans and other corporate strategy. 
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The People and Communities Committee is responsible for the development and 

implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life at a 

local level in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans and 

other corporate strategy. 

The Planning Committee is responsible for all of the Council's planning functions, except 

those matters, which are delegated to officers or reserved to full Council. 

The Licensing Committee is responsible for the consideration of all matters pertaining to 

policy and legislation in relation to licensing issues. 

The Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hallltd Shareholders' Committee is responsible for 

making the decisions required by the Shareholders' Agreement and ensure that the 

company complies with the contract for the operation of the venues. 

The Brexit Committee is responsible for researching, monitoring, and reviewing the financial, 

resource or operational impact upon the council and the district as a result of the UK leaving 

the European Union and for making recommendations to council on such issues (or the 

relevant standing committee where appropriate). 

In addition to the Committees listed in the diagrams above there are ten Working Groups 

established which include the Audit & Risk Panel, the Budget and Transformation Panel and 

four Area Working Groups. 

In June 2018, the Council appointed a Commissioner for Resilience, fully funded by the 

organisation '100 Resilient Cities'. The Commissioner who reports directly to the Chief 

Executive, is working with Council officers and city partners to design and implement a 

resilience strategy for Belfast, focusing on economic resilience. 

The Audit & Risk Panel provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's 

risk management framework and associated control environment. lt provides an 

independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance, which is 

relied upon by the Council, to the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control 

environment. The Panel reports to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee. The Audit 

& Risk Panel met four times during 2018/19. 

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework (2016 edition). How we meet these seven core principles is 

reviewed and updated annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance 

framework are set out in the table below: 

16 



Our seven principles of good governance 

A: Behaving with integrity 

• Shared values communicated via 
corporate plan, community plan and 
key strategies 

• Codes of conduct for Members & staff 

• POP I appraisal process for Members & 
staff 

• Gifts and hospitality and conflicts of 
interest policies & registers in place 

• Fraud & whistleblowing policies and 
investigations 

• Good Relations Unit 

• Equality & Diversity Framework 

• Council constitution, standing orders & 
scheme of delegation 

• Expert professional advice 

• Partners and contractors required to 
comply with relevant policies 

• Achieving Through People Framework 
and development of organisational 
values and behaviours 

B: Ensuring openness 
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-

-C: Defining outcomes 

E: Developing capacity & capability 

• Creation of City Organisational 
Strategy department 

• Achieving Through People 
Framework and development of 
organisational values and 
behaviours 

• Benchmarking activity 

• Efficiency programme 

• Regular performance monitoring of 
the delivery of improvement 
objectives 

• learning and development policy 

• Health and wellbeing strategy 

• Appraisal scheme in place for Chief 
Officers, Heads of Service and 
Senior Managers 

• PDPs for officers and Members 

• Member capacity building plan 
completed for 2018/19 

• Continuing Development 
Programme in place for the 
Planning Committee 

• Party group briefings 

'D: Optimising the ac hievement-of -~· 

outcomes 

-

F: Finance, performance and risk 
management 

• Strategic financial management 
framework in place 

• Efficiency programme 

• Performance management framework 

• Financial resilience review 

• Risk management strategy 

• Corporate risk management system 
(MKinsight) and processes/ 
procedures in place 

• Regular reporting of finance, risk & 
performance 

• Audit and Risk Panel 

• Internal audit function /annual 
internal audit strategy & plan in place 

• Recommendations Monitor process 

• Data protection policy and procedures 

• Corporate Fraud Risk Assessment 
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In the reporting period, the Council had two personal data breach incidents which were 
referred to the Information Commissioners Office, who took no further action. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources is the Council's 

designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government Finance Act (Northern 

Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial affairs. 

The Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements 

of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 

(2016). 

Having considered all the principles ofthe CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption (2014), subject to the implementation of the Fraud Action Plan, the 

Council has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and 

commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. 

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2019 edition) sets out the 

five principles that set out the organisation's responsibilities to ensure HIAs are able to 

operate effectively and perform their core duties. The Statement also sets out the core 

responsibilities of the HIA along with the personal skills and professional standards expected 

of the HIA. 

The Head of Audit, Governance and Risk Services (AGRS), and the supporting operational 

arrangements in place, conform to the five principles set out in the CIPFA Statement. This is 

demonstrated through a self-assessment exercise undertaken by AGRS. While the principles 

state that the HIA should not be responsible for preparing the annual governance report, the 

arrangements within the Council, involve AGRS eo-coordinating the preparation of the 

Annual Governance Statement which is then reviewed and approved by the Corporate 

Management Team, Assurance Board and Audit and Risk Panel, before being reviewed by 

Strategic Policy and Resources committee and signed by the Chair of Strategic Policy & 

Resources, the Chief Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and 

Resources. 

Review of Effectiveness 

The following diagram illustrates the Assurance Framework in place that provides 

information on compliance with the various elements of the Council's Governance 

Framework, including performance reports, health and safety reports, finance reports, 

internal audit reports and risk management reports. 
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The various in year and year-end reports arising from the Assurance Framework are reviewed and 

approved by the Audit and Risk Panel and Strategic Policy and Resources Committee annually. 

Jn addition, the review of the effectiveness of the Governance Framework is also informed by: 

• the annual review and update of the Code of Governance; 

• comments or recommendations made by the external auditors during their annual audit; and 

• the Head of Audit Governance and Risk Services (AGRS) annual assurance statement for the 

period ending 2018/19, which gives an opinion on the Council's risk and control environment. 

An extract from the Head of AGRS Annual Assurance Statement for the period ending 2018/19 is 

given below: 

As Head of Audit, Governance and Risk Services (AGRS}, on the basis of work carried out, I can provide a 
reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's framework of 
governance, risk management and control. This opinion is based on the following: 

• evidence from areas subject to detailed internal audit during 2018119, in that AGRS has been able 
to provide positive statements of assurance with the majority of audits falling into the 'some 
improvement needed' category- the 2nd tier of assurance in the 4 tier model 

• application of risk management and management assurance processes and our reviews of the 
management of key corporate risks 

• the evidence set out in the review of the Council's Code of Governance and Annual Governance 
Statement regarding the range of key assurance and governance arrangements that the Council 
has in place to direct I oversee its activities. 

However, some weaknesses and areas for improvement have been identified through audit work. These 
have been reported in detail to the Council's Assurance Board and Audit and Risk Panel during 2018119 
through quarterly progress reports. In addition, I have highlighted, where appropriate, where further 
action is required to implement agreed audit actions. The key issues I would highlight in this statement 
are as follows 

• While AGRS was able to provide positive statements of assurance in the majority of audits 
completed in 2018119, four areas resulted in 'major improvement' assurance levels- the review of 
the management of the corporate risk on Asset Management; the corporate I strategic level 
issues identified as part of the capital programme audit; the internal audit of Fire Safety 
arrangements and; the internal audit of the Markets. lt is important that the action plans that are 
in place to address these are implemented in a timely manner. 

Regarding the corporate risk on Asset Management, there is need for a fundamental review of the 
risk, the associated mitigation plan, the a/location of accountability and the progression of actions 
in relation to the baseline survey, clarifying roles and responsibilities and reviewing resourcing and 
financing. 

Our audit of the Capital Programme identified issues that were not unique to the capital 
programme but had wider corporate I strategic significance relating to how the Council aligns and 
prioritises projects in relation to the Belfast Agenda, with a focus on those projects which will best 
contribute to the outcomes of Belfast Agenda. lt is important that an action plan is developed and 
taken forward to address these corporate wide issues. 
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• The corporate r isk register is currently being reviewed. lt is important that any proposed changes 
to the corporate risks are agreed, ownership assigned and mitigation plans developed in a timely 
manner. 

• The updated Risk Strategy was approved in early 2019 and requires departments to better 
integrate risk management into their planning and performance management processes. AGRS 
will support and challenge departments in this regard. 

• Following the completion af the Corporate Fraud Risk Assessment, and in order to underline where 
responsibility for the management of fraud risk lies, the majority of departments have completed 
an initial fraud risk assessment. AGRS will be working with management to review the initial 
assessment and determine any follow up work that is required. 

Finally, looking ahead, the Council is taking forward a number of transformational programmes in 
2019/20 including the Belfast Region City Deal, Customer Focus Programme and the Continuous 
Improvement Programme. These present significant risks and opportunities to the Council. AGRS will be 
providing assurance and consultancy services to the Council in relation to these programmes and this has 
been built into our plan of work for the year ahead. 

Continued effort has been put into developing and implementing the key elements of an assurance 

framework within the Council with the key elements being: 

• a process whereby senior managers are required to sign annual assurance statements; 

• a process whereby Directors are required to sign quarterly assurance statements; 

• embedding risk management and developing the arrangements for oversight of the 

management of these risks; 

• business planning and related performance reporting arrangements; 

• an Audit and Risk Panel; 

• a professional internal audit function, which has been reviewed for effectiveness against the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; and 

• a Health & Safety Assurance Board. 

Update on the Significant Governance Issues that were declared last year 

Six issues were declared last year and three of these continue to be declared as issues in this year's 

statement (waste management, digital information security, and the Belfast Region City Deal). An 

update on the action that was taken regarding the remaining three issues that were declared last 

year (procurement and contract management, change management and bonfire management) is 

provided below. 

Procurement and Contract Management 

Since the identification of Procurement and Contract management as a corporate risk in the year 

ending March 2018, a new staffing structure for the Procurement Service has been implemented. 

The Head of Commercial and Procurement Services is now in post and management roles have since 

been recruited with new starts in Quarter 2 of this financial year. A Procurement Improvement Plan 
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has been developed and is being implemented which should address the procurement and 

commercial risks identified. 

Change management 

The Strategic Hub has been created to support the delivery of the Belfast Agenda, to provide project 

management and service design support to the change programmes, develop the people strategy 

and lead on staff engagement and communications. 

Bonfire Management 

Bonfires continue to be a very complex legacy issue and a framework for managing them has still to 

be agreed at a regional level. The Council continues to play a role in engaging with regional 

structures being led by The Executive Office. The Council has also worked through the 

recommendations in the independent review of bonfire management. lt sourced additional help on 

Governance and the new Governance arrangements are now embedded in the Council's overall 

approach to bonfires. 

Significant Governance Issues for the year-end 2019 

The significant governance issues for the year-end 2019 were identified through the review of the 

risks in the Corporate Risk Register and review of the Directors' Annual Assurance Statements. 

The most significant issues for the Council are in relation to: 

1. Waste management 

2. Digital Information Security 

3. Belfast Region City Deal 

4. City Centre Recovery and Revitalisation 

5. New Member Development and Development of the Political Management Arrangements 

More information on these significant governance issues is provided on the following pages. 

1. Waste Management 

The impact of the failure to manage the City's waste targets in an affordable manner is significant in 
relation to the financial penalties that can be imposed. Key actions have been undertaken to 
mitigate against the likelihood of this with the development of the draft Waste Framework, which 
sets the direction of the Council until2030. Elements of this framework will require ongoing political 
and community support and significant capital investment. The monitoring of our existing waste 
contracts is ongoing. In addition we will continue to monitor the position of the proposed arc21 
Residual Waste Treatment Project following the Court of Appeal's judgment in July 2018 in relation 
to planning permission, and the subsequent decision by the Department for Infrastructure not to 
appeal this ruling. 
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2. Digital Information Security 

Security of our information assets remains a concern. Digital Services uses its resources to deliver a 

securely designed infrastructure, continually improve the maturity of security processes and to 

ensure security controls are in place to detect threats to the ICT environment. The delivery of a 

secure ICT Infrastructure aligns security activities with business need in order to optimise security 

budgets and resources. 

Last year, in addition to ensuring the operation of established controls, we established a Security 
Oversight Group, revised the ICT security strategy against business impact assessment and 
investigated tools to detect approved and non-approved use of cloud-based services. 

This year we will take the following additional actions to further mitigate this risk; completion of the 

work to create a new ICT security strategy against business impact assessment; assessment and 

acting on the results of the review of approved and non-approved use of cloud-based services and; 

implementation of the recommendations of the Corporate Risk Review- Digital Information 

Security. 

3. Belfast Region City Deal 

Appropriate governance and programme management arrangements were put in place to develop 

the Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD) proposition, which was presented to UK and NI governments in 

September 2018. The Chancellor in his budget statement in October 2018, announced a £350m 

investment package for the BRCD, with a further £350m match funding from NI Executive and 

£150m contribution from BRCD partners. Belfast City Council, as the lead authority, are now putting 

in place a dedicated programme office and revised governance structures to deliver the second 

phase of the programme, which includes the development of outline business cases for all projects, 

and will result in a financial agreement being drawn up between BRCD and the UK government and 

NI Executive. Work will also continue on the governance arrangements and assurance framework 

which will be put in place for the delivery phase of the deal, which is likely to commence in 2021. 

4. City Centre Recovery and Revitalisation 

The major fire at the Bank Buildings in August 2018 resulted in the forced closure of 14 city centre 

retail traders inside a cordoned off area and had a negative impact on traders and businesses within 

the immediate vicinity of the cordon. Council sought and was granted £2 million towards the 

recovery of the city centre from the Chancellor of the Exchequer in the October 2018 budget. This 

fund was supplemented by additional monies from the Northern Ireland Government Departments 

and from Council itself to support the recovery of the city centre. Council is committed to 

supporting recovery in the city centre having put in place a programme to manage the immediate 

recovery and going forward, has put in place a revitalisation programme to encourage visitors and 

shoppers back to the city centre. This is supported by a team delivering on each work strand, led by 

the Director of Place and Economy. 
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The Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, at its meeting on 14 November 2018, agreed the 

overall expenditure for the City Recovery Programme, with a total cost of the Phase 1 Programme 

estimated at £2.79m. A further report to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, on 22 

February 2019, advised that the forecast net expenditure to date was £1.882m and that the Council 

would continue to undertake expenditure on behalf of Treasury and NICS government departments 

(as outlined in November Report). In addition to this spend was £0.42m of costs in relation to initial 

response action following the Primark fire. lt was agreed by Committee that the remaining budget 

for Phase 1 be carried through into the Phase 2 City Revitalisation Programme and approved the 

broad strands of work and a budget allocation of £2.50Sm. 

5. New Member Development and Development of the Political Management 

Arrangements 

Following the elections in May 2019, the Council now has 22 new members and there is a need to 
design and deliver a significant programme of work to ensure that they are provided with sufficient 
support and development to help them fulfil their role. This will also involve ongoing development 
of our political management arrangements to ensure that they provide effective support for parties 
and party group leaders. 

~~~;~;;~;:~~;~~;~~·-······ ······ .. -·. 

. ~ . 
S1gned: ........................................................................................... . 

Chief Financial Officer 
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES' 

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

INTRODUCTION 

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies to prepare 
o remuneration report as port of the statement of accoun!s. 

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS 

COUNCILLORS 

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Port 3 of the Local Government Finance Act 
(Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012. which come into 
operation on 1 April 2012. 

Guidance and determine lions on Councillors' Allowances opplico ble from 1 April 2018 were issued by the Deportment for 
Communities on 31 July 2018 (Circular LG 12/2018). Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on counc~ 
websites. 

Following local elections on 2 May 2019 Belfast City Council has 60 elected Members representing 10 District Electoral Areas. 

SENIOR EMPLOYEES 

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined by the 
Notional Joint Counc~ (NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff ore those staff who are members of the Corporate 
Management Team, namely the Chief Executive and Directors. 

Council appointments of employees ore mode in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions' Code of Procedures 
on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competition. 

Unless otherwise slated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which ore open-ended. 
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS 

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances. under Port 3 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 
2011 and the Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 was: 

Table 1: Toto! Allowances paid to councillors (oudlted 1nformol!on) 

A!lowonce 2018 19 2017/18 
Totol Allowances Number of Councll!ors Total Allowances Number of 

£ receiving the £ Councillors receiving 
Allowance 

Basic Allowance 851.196 60 849.435 

Special Responsibility 106.691 39 107.580 
Allowance 
Lord Mayor Allowance 34,800 I 34,800 

Deputy Lord Mayor Allowance 6,250 1 6,250 

PCSP Allowance 12,360 25 13,620 

High Sheriffs Allowance 6,250 1 6,250 

Subsistence 4.223 25 7.812 

Mileage Allowance 14,248 33 11.410 

Courses/ Conferences Visits 5,997 20 25.345 
(registration & joining fees) 

Telephone rental 4.410 16 4.261 

Miscellaneous costs 2,834 

Other Travel allowance 9,270 27 27,076 

TOTAL 1,055.695 - 1,096,673 

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2018/19 ore published on the council websile at 
www.belfaslcity.gov.uk/freedomofinformotion/councillorexpemes.aspx 

the Allowonce 

The above table provides further information and details on the allowances paid to councillors to that published on the council 
website. 

The following Is o summary of resignation and appointments of Coun clllors during 201 8·19: 

Councillor Mary McConville resigned on 27 November 2018 
Councillor Christina Block was appointed on 28 November 2018 

60 

41 

1 

1 

27 

1 

38 

38 

38 

18 

15 

44 
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES 

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Corporate Management Team. The following table provides details of the 
remuneration paid to senior employees: 

Table 2 - Table 2: Remuneration Including solary)laudlled Information] 
Officers 2018 19 2017/18 

Salary (Full Bonus BenefHs In Total Salary (Full Bonus Benefits In Total 
year Payments kind (to year Payments kind (to 

equivalent In nearest equivalent In nearest 
brackets £100) brackets £100) 

where where 
applicable) applicable) 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Chief Executive- 140-145 0 0 140-145 135-140 0 0 135-140 
Suzanne Wylie " 
Director of Finance & 110-115 0 0 110-115 105-110 0 0 105-110 
Resources - Ronan Cregan 
Director of Property & Projects - 105-110 0 0 105-110 IOQ-105 0 0 100-105 
Gerry Miller 
Director of Cily & 10Q-105 0 0 10Q-105 95-100 0 0 95-100 
Neighbourhood Services- Nigel 
Grimshow 

City Solicitor- John Welsh 10Q-105 0 0 100-105 95-100 0 0 95-100 

Director of Cily Centre 15-20 0 0 15-20 95-100 0 0 95-100 
Development- Nuala (10Q-105 FYE) (lOQ-105 
Gollagher"" FYEJ 
Director of City & 10Q-105 0 0 IOQ-105 5-10 0 0 5-10 
Organisational Sirategy- John (1 OQ-105 FYEJ (IOQ-105 
Tully FYE) 
Strategic Director of Place & 85-90 0 0 85-90 - - - -
Economy - Alistair Reid" (95-100 FYE) (9 5-1 DO FYE) 
Commissioner for Resilience - 65-70 0 0 65-70 - - - -
Groinio Long••• (BQ-85 FYE) (BQ-85 FYE) 

•strategic Director of Place & Economy Alistair Reid joined the Council on 21 May 2018. 

""Director of City Centre Development Nuala Gallogher left the Council on 6 J.-ne 20l 8. 

•••commissioner for Resilience Grainia Long joined the Council on 14 June 2018. 

" An additional approved payment of£ 15,480 was mode relating to on accrued contrac tual entitlement. 

Councils ore required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate 
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce. 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate ManagementTeam in the financ'al year 2018/19 was £140-
145k. This was 6.1 limes the median remuneration of the workforce. which was £23.111. 

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate Management Team and the median 
remuneration of the Councils workforce (audited Information) 

2018/19 2017/18 
£'000 £'000 

Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the Executive 140-145 135-140 
Median Total Remuneration 23.1 22.7 
Ratio 6.1 6.1 

In 2018/19. no employees received remuneration in excess of the highe~t paid member of the Corporate Management Team. 
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Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in l:ind. 

Salary 
"Salary" includes gross salary and any ex grolio payments. 

Benefits In Kind 
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a 
taxable emolument. 

Exit Packages tor staH 
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with total cost per band end total cost of the voluntary 
redundancies os agreed under the Council's voluntary redundancy scheme ore set out in the table below: 

Table 4: Exit Packages In 2018/19 (audited Information) 

2018 1'1 2017/18 

Number of Number of Total Total Cost of Number of Number of Total Tolcll Cost 
Compulsory Other Number of Packages In Compulsory Other Numberol ol 

Severance Package Cost Band Redundancies departures Exll each Cost Redundancies departures Exit Packages 
agreed Packages In Band agreed Packages In each 

each Cosl £'000 In each Cost Band 
Band Casl Band £'000 

£0-£20.000 0 2 2 24 0 7 7 67 
£20.001 - £40,000 0 5 5 126 0 4 4 135 
£40.001 -£60,000 0 4 4 206 0 6 6 278 
£60.001 -£80.000 0 7 7 497 0 2 2 156 
£80.00 I - £1 00.000 0 1 1 94 0 4 4 370 
£100,001-£150.000 0 6 6 691 0 3 3 360 
£150.001-£200.000 0 2 2 365 0 2 2 312 
£200.001 - £250.000 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 209 
Total 0 27 27 2.003 0 29 29 1.887 

Pension Benefits 

The local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, which 
provides retirement benefits for council employees on a "career average revalued earnings" basis from 1 April 20 I 5. Prior to that 
dote benefits were built up on a "final salary" basis. 

From 1 April2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rote of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension benefits in 
relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each year 
of membership. There is no a ulomctic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009. Pension benefits in relation 
to ony membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the role of 1/BOih (pension) and 3/BOths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable 
pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, 
subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRCI limits. The conversion role is £12 additional lump sum for every£ 1 of pension given up. 

Councillors hove been ob e to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the fact that 
councillors hold on elected office. Councillor members hove always accrued pension ono career overage basis. Prior to 1 April 
2015 pension was accrued et a rote of 1/60th and thereafter et a rate of 1/49th. 
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The Scheme is funded by contributions mode by both employees/counci lors and employers. Prior to 1 April2009, a member's 
contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their penS:onable remuneration (except for those who were entitled to contribute to the 
Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and hove remained in continuous employment]. Tiered member contribution rotes. 
determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April2009. From 1 April 2015, the member contribution 
roles ore determined on the actual role of poy. 

The ranges for the bonds for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in April each year in 
accordance with the increase applied too pens'on in payment. The bonds. effective from 1 April2018. were os follows: 

Table 5: Employee Contribution Roles 

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate 

1 £0-£14.500 5.5% 
2 £14,501-£22.100 5.8% 
3 £22.101 - £36,900 6.5% 
4 £36,901 -£44.700 6.8% 
5 £44.701 -£88.300 8.5% 
6 More than £88.300 10.5% 

Employers' contribution rotes ore determined by the fund's actuary every three years at the triennial valuation. A formal triennial 
actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2016 was carried out in 2016/17 and set the employer contribution roles for the 3 
years commencing l April2017 os follows: 

T bl 6 E a e : mp1oyer C t lb ll R I on r u on o es 
Year Employer Contribution Rote 

1 April2017- 31 March 2018 18% + 2% deficit contribution 
1 Aoril2018- 31 March 2019 19% + 2% deficit contribution 
1 Aoril 2019- 31 March 2020 20% + 2% deficit contribution 

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets 
of reg ulotions ore effective from I April 20 15. 

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus far. 
However, the in-year pension contributions mode by the Council for all councillors during 2018/19 was £160.306 (2017/18 £154.733). 
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The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was os follows: 

Table 7· Pension Benems of senior stall In 2018/19 (audited Information) 
Officers Accrued Pension and Real Increase In CETV at CETV at Real Increase In 

Lump Sum (LS) at pension pension and related 31/03/19 31/03/18 CETV 
age as at 31/03/19 lump sum at pension (restated) 

£'000 age £'000 £'000 £'000 
£'000 

Suzanne Wylie 50-SS (0-2.5) 976 953 (7) 
100-lOS (LS) (2.5·5) (LS) 

Ronon Cregan 
45·50 0-2.5 923 855 36 

85-90 !LSI (0-2.5) (LS) 

Gerry Miller 
45-50 0-2.5 1.084 1.076 (18 

110-115 (LS) 0-2.5 (LS) 

Nigel Grimshow 
5-10 0-2.5 83 53 17 
0 (LSI O(LS) 

JohnWalsh 
35-40 2.5-5 703 616 62 

60-65 (LS) 2.5-5 (LS) 

Nuolo Gollogher 
0-5 0-2.5 43 38 5 

0 (LSJ O!LSl 

John Tully 
0-5 0-2.5 29 I 17 

O(LS) O(LS) 

Alistoir Reid 
0-5 0-2.5 24 - 24 

0 (LS) 0 (LSJ 

Grainia long 
0-5 0-2.5 13 - 13 

0 (LS) O(LS) 

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
This is the octuorially assessed capilolised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. 
The benefits valued ore the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. lt is o 
payment made by o pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefils in another pension scheme or arrangement when 
the member leaves o scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they hove accrued in their former scheme. The pension 
figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued os o consequence of their total membership of the pension 
scheme, not just their service in o senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The 
Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not tol:e account of any actual or potential 
reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits ore token. The CETV amounts 
at 3 I March 2018 were updated to tol:e account of new factors and the revised figures ore included in the table above. 

The real Increase In the value of the CETV 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. If takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to 
inflolion, contributions paid by the employee (including the vo ue of any benefils transferred from another pension scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. However, the real increase 
calculation uses common actuarial factors of the start and end of the period so that it disregards the effect of any changes in 
factors and focuses only on the increase that is funded by the employer. 

Chief Executive 
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Certificate of the Chief financial Officer 

I certify that: 

(a) The Statement of Accounts for the year ended on pages 37 to 128 has been prepared in the form directed by the 
Department for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 41 to 64 and page 117. 

(b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the 
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31st March 2019. 

Chief financial Officer ,&..._ ~-
Date ?,o (q(t1 

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Strategic Policy & Resource Committee on 20 September 2019 

Chairperson 

Date 2.o J q jl" 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

Opinion on financial statements 

I have audited the financial statements of Belfast City Council and its group for the year ended 31 

March 2019 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements 

comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 

Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, together with the Group Accounts and the related notes 

including significant accounting policies. These financial statements have been prepared under the 

accounting policies set out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration 

Report that is described in that report as having been audited. 

In my opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements 
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018·19, 
of the financial position of Belfast City Council and its group as at 31 March 2019 and its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and 
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities' 
directions issued thereunder. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs). My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the 

audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and I are independent of Belfast 

City Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial Reporting Council's Revised 

Ethical Standard 2016, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. 

Other Information 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the Statement of 

Accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts 

other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in the report as 

having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. My opinion on the financial statements 

does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in 

this regard. 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion: 

• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Department for Communities' directions made under the local 



Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and 

• the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 
March 2019 is consistent with the financial statements. 

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities, 
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the 
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government 

(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. 

My objectives are to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 

sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 

Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsib1lities. This description forms 

part of my certificate. 

This report is made solely to the Members of Belfast City Council in accordance with the Local 

Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement 

of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies. 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if: 

• in my opinion: 

o the Annual Governance Statement: 

• does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018-19; 

• does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for 
Communities; 

• is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my 
audit; or 

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 
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o the statement of accounts and the part of the remuneration Report to be audited 
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 

o I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit, or 

• I issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern 
Ireland) Order 2005; or 

• I designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any 
recommendation made to the Council; or 

• I exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the local 
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. 

Certificate 

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Belfast City Council in accordance with the 

requirements of the local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the local Government Code 

of Audit Practice. 

Pamela McCreedy 

local Government Auditor 

Northern Ireland Audit Office 

106 University Street 

Belfast 

BT71EU 

30 September 2019 



Belfast City Council 
Movement In Reserves Slalemenlfor lhe year ended 31 March 2019 

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on lhe different reserves held by the 
authority. analysed into 'usable reserves' {fe those that can be appOed to fund expenditure or reduce focal taxation) and other 
'unusable reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements In year of the Council's reserves ore broken down between gains and 
losses Incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices ond the statutory adjustment required to return to the 
amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The Net lncreose/Decreose Hne shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements 
in the year fo owing those adjustments. 
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Belfast CHy Councn 
Comprehensive Income and Expendlure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditi.Ke Stolement shows the accounting cost In the yeot or providing services in accordance 
with generaly accepted accounting practices, rather than Ir e amo1.ntto be funded from taxation. Counals raise taxation to cover 
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be difference from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown 
In both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement In Reserves Statement. 
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llellast CHy Council 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and ·'abilifes recogflised by the CounciL The net assets 
of the Council (assets less tioblr.lies) are matched by the reserves held by the Counc· . Reserves ore reported in two cotegorles. The first 
category of reserves ore usable reserves, le those reserves that the Council may use to provide services. subject to the need to maintain 
a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second category of reserves Is those that the Council Is not 
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves Includes reserves that hold unreolised gains and losses (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services If the assets ore sold: and reserves that ho'd 
timing differences shown in the Movement In Reserves Statement line ' Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
regulations'. 
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BeHast City councn 

Cash Flow Statement at31 March 201? 

The Cosh Row Statement shows the changes In cosh and cash equivalents of the Counc:i' during the reporting period. The statement 
shows how the Council generates and uses cash end cosh eqvvotents by oossifylng cosh flows os operating. Investing end financing 
activities. The amount of net cosh flows arising from operating activities Is o l:ey indicator of the extent to which the operations of the 
Council ore funded by woy of taxation ond grontlncome or from the recipients of services prov'ded by the Council. Investing octivires 
represent the extent to which cosh oufllows hove been mode for resources which ore Intended to contribute to the Coundl's future 
service delivery. Cosh flows orls:ng from financing activities ore useful In predicting claims on future cosh flows by providers of capitol 
Oe borrowing) to the Council. 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Accounting Policies 

o General Principles 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transadions for the 2018/19 financial 
yearond its position at the year·end of 31 March 2019. The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in 
accordance with regulations 3 (7) ond {8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. 

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The 
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cos1. 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

i} Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients. whether for services or the provision of 
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service 
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract. 

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed- where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption. they are carried as 
inventories on the Bafance Sheet. 

-Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) ore 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effedive interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

-Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. 
Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled. the balance of debtors is written down and a 
charge made to revenue for the income that might not be coflected. 
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fil Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments 
that mature in six months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

In the Cash Flow Statement. cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash 
management. 

li) Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liabi.l'y arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities ore not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
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lv) Employee BenefHs 

Short-term employee benefits ore those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year­
end. They include such benefits os wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and ore 
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An 
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the applicable wage and salary 
rote. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then 
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements ore 
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable os o result of a decision by the Council to 
terminate on officer's employment before the normal retirement date or on officer's decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange far those benefits and ore charged on on 
accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate 
service segment at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require 
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the 
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement. appropriations are required 
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

Post Employment Benefits 

The majority of employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local 
Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government 
Officers' Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council. 
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The Northern Ireland Local Government OHicers' Pension Fund 

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined 
benefits scheme. 

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method- i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates , etc. and projections of projected earnings for current 
employees. 

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices. using a discount rate based on the 
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities. 

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

quoted securities - current bid price 
unquoted securities - professional estimate 
property- market value 
unitised securities- current bid price 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following seven components: 

Within the Cost of Services 

Current Service Cost- the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period. 

Past Service Cost- (where applicable) the change in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment 
(the introduction or withdraw! of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a 
significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the plan). 

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement- (where applicable) arising where a council enters into a 
transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the 
benefits provided under a defined benefit plan. 

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) -the change in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time. 



Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements) 
The Return on Plan Assets- excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net 
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes interest. dividends and other income derived 
from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, 
less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax 
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation. 

Actuarial Gains and Losses- changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from: a) experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous 
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred} and b} the effects of changes in 
actuarial assumptions. 

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations 
Contributions by Scheme Participants- the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to 
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution increases pension 
due to the employee in the future}. 

Contributions by the Employer- the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the 
scheme by the employer. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to 
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and 
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits 
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the 
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits 
are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted 
for using the same policies that are appred to the Northern Ireland Local Government 
Officers' pension fund. 

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central 
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS} 
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums 
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities 
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is 
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future 
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
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vj Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

Events after the Balance Sheet dote are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the dote when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period -
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement 
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 
have a material effect. disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 
estimated financial effect. 

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are 
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually 
the date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where material 
adjustments ore mode in this period they will be disclosed. 

Events taking place after the dote of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement 
of Accounts. 

vi) Exceptlonalltems 

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or 
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items ore to an 
understanding of the Council's financial performance. 

vii} Prior Period Adjustments, Changes In AccounHng Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates ore accounted for prospectively, 
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of 
transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial 
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise} 
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new 
policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

During 2018/19 the Council revised its Community Asset policy and this is included in section 
xx of Note 1 . Any necessary restatements have been reflected in the relevant notes and 
statements in the Accounts. 
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vfii} Flnanclallnstruments 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable 
for the year according to the loan agreement. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be 
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount 
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that 
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. 
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
- amortised cost 

The Council's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost. except for those whose 
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument). 
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Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For 
most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the 
year in the loan agreement. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Expected Credit Loss Model 

The Council recognises expected credit fosses on all of its financial assets held at amortised 
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to 
lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 
receivables (debtors) held by the Council. 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might 
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a 
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was 
initially recognised, losses are assessed on a ifetime basis. Where risk has not increased 
significiantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses 
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Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Proflt or Loss 

Financial assets that ore measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as 
they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. 

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
- instruments with quoted market prices - the market price 
-other instruments with fixed and determinable payments- discounted cash flow analysis. 

The inputs to the measurement techniques ore categorised in accordance with the following 
three levels: 

• Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority con access at the measurement date. 
• Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset. either directly or indirectly. 
• Level 3 inputs- unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset ore credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 



ix) Foreign Currency Translation 

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year­
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses 
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

xJ Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account. by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
- the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential 
must be returned to the transferer. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied 
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to 
the Capitol Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve ore transferred to 
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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xi} Inventories & Long Term Contracts 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula. 

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations 
satisfied based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the 
financial year. 

x~) Overheads and Support Services 

The majority of overheads and support services are included in the expenditure of the 
Strategic Policy & Resources Committee in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

xfii) Landfill Allowance Scheme 

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme {Northern 
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the 
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that con be sent to londfill but there 
ore no tradable allowances. it is not a 'cap and trade' scheme since londfill allowances are 
not tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances ore not recognised as assets on the Balance 
Sheet. 

xiv} Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not hove physical substance but are controlled 
by the Council os a result of past events {e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is 
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible 
asset to the Council. 

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is 
technically feasible and is intended to be completed {with adequate resources being 
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver 
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it 
can be measured reliably os attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during 
the development phase {research expenditure is not capitalised). 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or 
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council's goods or services. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts ore only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council con be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are 
therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of on intangible asset is 
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line{s) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the asset m ight be impaired- any losses recognised ore posted to the relevant service line{s) 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of on intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory 
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to 
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any safe proceeds greater than £5,000) the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 
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xv) Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
d elivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the 
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset. investment properties are 
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually 
according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted 
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result 
in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 

xvi) Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets 
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The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance 
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception 
(or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is 
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council 
are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are 
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property,plant or equipment- applied to 
write down the lease liability, and 
b. a finance charge {debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the 
lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life {where ownership of the asset 
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period). 

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and 
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made 
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory 
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted 
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 

Operating Leases: 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at 
the commencement of the lease). 
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The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease 

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of 
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant 
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the 
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement a so as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal), matched by a lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the 
lease debtor together with any premiums received, and 
b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is 
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated 
as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals 
in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals 
are paid, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write 
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non­
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The Council as Lessor- Operating Lease 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match 
the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same 
basis as rental income. 
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xvii) Surplus Assets 

Surplus assets are non-operational assets that do not meet the conditions to be classified as 
assets held for sale. They are measured at fair value, reflecting the actual market state and 
conditions at the balance sheet date (which is the valuation date) with best evidence of fair 
value in on active market for similar properties in the some location. The council classifies 
assets to surplus assets on the advice of its estates management officers and in consultation 
with its external property valuers. 
The surplus assets held by the council comprise a number of properties including land, 
buildings or sites of land and buildings combined, which hove not reached the stage where 
the council con market these for sale advantageously, or where the properties have 
restrictions that prevent them currently being brought to market. 

xv'iil Dlsposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sole transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified os 
an Asset Held for Sole. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then 
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell. the loss is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair 
value ore recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for 
Sole. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sole, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before 
they were classified os held for sole: adjusted for depreciation. amortisation or revoluotions 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified os held for sole. and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale. 

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposols (if any) are credited 
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also os part of 
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time 
of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Amounts greater than £5k received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and 
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rotes, as the cost of non­
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts ore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 



xix) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected 
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an 
asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e .. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. The Council applies a de-minimis 
level of £25k to Plant & Machinery, Information Technology equipment, Fixtures & Fittings and 
Office equipment. meaning only assets over £25k are capitalised. Subsequent capital 
expenditure is only capitalised where it provided an enhancement to the economic benefits 
of the asset in excess of those previously addressed. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost. comprising: 
a. the purchase price 
b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
c . the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site 
on which if is located 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 
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The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value. unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 

Donated assets ore measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and 
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. 
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. they 
ore reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capitol Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

- infrastructure. community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost 
- short life assets, including rood vehicles. plant and equipment. fixtures and fittings. office 
equipment, and IT and IT equipment- depreciated historic cost as an estimate of fair value 
-surplus assets- fair value (at highest and best use) 
- investment properties - measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value as outlined 
in accounting policy note xiv 
- all other assets- service potential (current value) 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of on 
asset. depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value. 

Valuation 

The Council operates a rolling programme for the revaluation of Land and Buildings with 
approximately 25% of these being revalued by physical inspection each year and the 
remainder being revalued by a desktop exercise. Increases in valuations ore matched by 
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally. gains might 
be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise 
from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since l April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and. where this is less than the 
carrying omount of the asset. an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
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Where impairment losses are identified, they ore accounted for by: 

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve. the 
conying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains}. 
b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or on insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s} in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where on impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount 
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would hove been charged if the loss hod 
not been recognised. 

The some accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fall in 
asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific to 
on asset os is in the case of impairment losses. 
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Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all property. plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
a'location of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for 
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community 
Assets} and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction}. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the following classes of tangible asset: 

- buildings, installation and fittings ore depreciated on their fair value over the estimated 
remaining lives of those assets as advised by the Independent Chartered Surveyors. 
Depending on the type of building, installation or fitting the maximum useful life will be a 
range up to 60 years. 
-infrastructure assets, short-life assets, including road vehicles. plant and equipment. fixtures 
and fittings. office equipment, and IT and IS equipment are depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives. 

Intangible assets ore amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
-straight-line allocation of the estimated useful lives 
- depreciation is charged in the month of capitalisation but not in the month of disposal 

Componentlsatlon 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately. 

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets. 
The Council applies the following de-minimis levels in relation to componentisation: 
- a component should be valued separately if it is greater than or equal to 3% of the total 
value of the asset and 
- the individual compenent has a valuation of greater than or equal to £300k 

Revaluations 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with on amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capitol Adjustment Account. 

S9 



xx) Community Assets 

From 1 April 2017, community assets ore recognised, measured and accounted for at their 
depreciated historic cost. The historical cost of a community asset is deemed to be the 
carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 or at the dote of acquisition, whichever date is 
the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation or impairment (if applicable). 

Community assets that consist of land or that have an indeterminable useful life will not be 
depreciated but will be subject to annual review for impairment. Community assets that are 
depreciable and have a determinable useful life will be depreciated systematically at a 
constant (straight-line) rate over their useful lives, os well as being subject to impairment 
review if there is evidence of excessive deterioration or that their value to the Council is 
below their then carrying amount. 

Depreciation on community assets will be charged on on annual basis to the appropriate 
service of the Council in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

xxi) Heritage Assets 

Heritage Assets ore assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that ore held and maintained principally for their contribution to 
knowledge and culture. 

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future 
generations because of their cultural. environmental or historic associations. They would be 
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of 
heritage. 

The Council's collection of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic Items) is reported in the 
balance sheet at insurance valuation, which is based on market values, or if it is not possible 
to obtain a valuation, they ore maintained at historical cost less any depreciation, 
amortisation or impairment losses. These insurance voluations based on market values are 
updated on a periodic basis. Summary information on Heritage Assets has been provided 
for transactions in 2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years. Detailed information relating to 
transactions has not been included for prior years os it would not be practical to do so and 
there is little value added for the users of the accounts. 
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xxii) Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits 
or service potentiaL and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
For instance. the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the 
obligation. and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure 
required to settle the obligation. taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year­
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made). the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim). this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council 
settles the obligation. 

xxiii) Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred. it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back 
into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the 
expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets. 
financial instruments. retirement benefits and employee benefts and do not represent usable 
resources for the Council- these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts. 
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xxiv) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 
c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisations. However. it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement [equal 
to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 
accordance with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and 
amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance 
[minimum revenue provision (MRP)], by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the 
two. 

xxv) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure 
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates. 

xxvi) Value Added Tax 

V AT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

xxvii) The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme {CRC) 

The Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy 
Efficiency Scheme. The scheme is currently in the last year of its introductory phase, which 
ends on 31st March 2014. The Council is required to purchase and surrender allowances, 
currently retrospectively, on the basis of emissions, i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is 
used. As carbon dioxide is produced (i.e. as energy is used), a liability and an expense are 
recognised. The liability will be discharged by surrendering allowances. The liability is 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, normally 
at the current market price of the number of allowances required to meet the liability at the 
reporting date. The cost to the Council is recognised and reported in the costs of the 
Councils services and is apportioned to services on the basis of energy consumption. These 
costs were £214k in 2018/19. 
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xxviil) Landfill Exploration and Evaluation 

The Council considers the facts and circumstances to determine whether an exploration and 
evaluation asset should be recognised in respect of the landfill site including assessment of 
the amount. timing and certainty of fulure cash flows under IFRS 6. The Council's landfill site 
produces gas to generate electricity and the income from this electricity generation is 
reducing year on year due to environmental and other uncontrollable variables. In 2018-19 
the costs of production of gas outweighed the income and resulted net gain of £261 k. The 
Council does not recognise any asset in respect of this gas production as any forecasting or 
estimating of future income is uncertain. The Council cannot reliably measure or value such 
an asset under IAS 38. 

xxix) Fair Value Measurement 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings {other financial 
instruments as applicable] at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability. or 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset. the Council takes into account a 
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. 

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data is available. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the Council's financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, as follows: 
• level 1 -quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the authority can access at the measurement date 
• level 2- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability. either directly or indirectly 
*level3- unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

xxx) Capital Receipts Unapplied 
This represents capital receipts that are held on the balance sheet to finance future capital 
expenditure. Income from disposal of fixed assets is posted into the capital receipts 
unapplied account until such time as it is allocated to finance other capital expenditure. 

The amount of £117k in capital receipts unapplied re1ates to the remaining proceeds from a 
disposal to the NI HE which is being used to finance a playground. 
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b Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

The Council has considered the following accounting standards that come into effect for 
financial years commencing on or before 1 January 2019 and identified the impact they will 
have on the Council's financial statements; 

a) amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property 

b)Annuallmprovements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle 

c) IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

d)IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

e)amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation 

There is no identifiable material impact for any of the above. 

c Critical Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying accounting policies set out from 1 a above the Counci has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. 
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
Landfill Provision 
The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping and aftercare costs for 
the landfiff site depends on a judgement around the appropriate discount rate to be used 
and the number of years over which these costs need to be provided. The landfill provision 
figures are sensitive to the assumptions used. The impact of amending the interest rates 
used to discount this provision has been mitigated through the creation of a Provision 
Discount Rate Reserve to accomodate fluctuations in the current value of the annual 
calculation of long term provisions for landfilf costs. 

d Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

Pension Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, 
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A 
firm of consulting actuaries AON Hewitt is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice 
about the assumptions to be applied. The pension figures disclosed in these financial 
statements are sensitive to the assumptions used. 

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded 
defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2019 and the projected service cost for the year 
ending 31 March 2020 is set out in Note 20. 
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a 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (govemment grants, rents. and 
rotes) by ocol authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by authorities in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices. 11 olso shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council's committees. 
Income ond expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive 
Income ond Expenditure Statement. 

.. • 
Netl!xpetldliur. In H•t~l~ 

Het thee Het bp•ndlhlro lh• Comf'Nhe"* 
ChalgabMio..,. Adjutlmenll lnc-anc Charaal* to IM Adlustm.nh lncotr~e _ _,. 

G.neiUI Fund G-al fund 
Stat.tn.n Slalement 

(leslaled] (Reslaled) 
_I I I I I £l 

Sttaleglc Policy & Resources 46.1'00.685 120.048.6681 66.949,353 411.981.261 (4.236.1>69) 53.217.950 

Clly Growth & Regenerotlon 17,772.2ll5 15.536.113) 23.308.398 14.357.901 l6.o61!.6541 20.426.SSS 

People & Communities 81.126,6-40 115.317,701 I 96.444,341 74.330.146 116.267.1461 90.597.294 

Planning & Licencing 1.799.300 (519.618) 2.318,918 1.659.623 15&1.7121 2.240.335 

-·--~·--- -, ·r - ·· ~-----,·-------:;-·----J - ·--~ 

1Nct_Cos!_o iScNiccs ____ ·1_. 147,598910 1 (41,412.100). 189.021,0)0. 13¥,328931,1 _ (2~ .. 153?0-JJ ___ 166482.134 1 

(1411,957,302) 22.032.772 (142,7411,075) 6,41~.20! 

~:p;u;:,-;,:f:clt , .. (;,388.~9;;]--~~9.32;;-; ~=--- 18000.9J6k~ •• --=cJ·419.-144) !. _ (20,738998) '. _ 17319.854 ' -----------------·-- -------- ~· -- - - I I -

Opening Ccncrul fund ---·~ j 24 408 596 20 989 452 

Surplus/ (Oekll) on Gen•rol 
fund lolanceln Year 1.311.392 l.~19.1M 

~ --------1-- l - -1- ' .._ --... ·~~- ---·---

Cio,lng General Fund J. _ ,. J• . ,, 25 H6 988 j . . _ _ J. __ .. ·-. _ , . __ 24408 596 
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b 
~~ ~--=- - ~-~------~~,-.,......-:--r"=" ..... --- - --::;·~~ --- --=-~.-~ 

Note to the Expc:od•IU<<> and Funding Analysis >~ : · _ ~ _:lf.l~~· .. !l!tl.• • ..t.•::•.J.~.'--~. :. a.t'·.· '- ' •. , •. ..:;..-..A~ 

This note provides a recondEofon of the main adjustments to Net Elcpencfture Chorgeob'e to the General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the 
Comprehensive ncome ond Elcpenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves ore explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement 

Ad)uslmenls between Funding and AccounHng aasls 
2018/19 

- - --

Adjustm.,-nf;hom General fund IO'Oillv.:;ol In.,..-!; Adjustments tor '· Net Changc'tor~- Ofhcr Statutory ' - Other ·non : J Total 
Camprchcnslv.; Jncomc a/id Expcnd!IV!c Slulcment ~ Cop.tal tile Pen•lo1i l Adjustments stalulo1y adjushnenfs 
1Amounh • Purposes Adjustment< I AdJustment~ ; . 
~.:~ ~-- ----&.. .... .-..------· ... ~--- 'L ... .. ·-- .i. ___ :l _______ t - --- - . - -

I 

f. -"' 
Slrcteglc Policy & Resources 13,284,2801 117.218.473) 172.1161 526,20t 120,048.6681 

Clly Growth & Regeneration [4.065. 197) 1575,729) 119.438) 1675,749) 15.536.113) 

People & Communltles (11.675,560) 13.652.1911 10.070 - [1 5.317,701) 

Planning & Ucendno . [529.8031 10.165 . [519.616) 

Net Cost ot ServiCes 19.025.057 121.976,196 71,299 349,548 41.422.100 

Other Income ond Expenditure rrom the 25,191.546 (2.512.80<4) . [645.972) 22.032,772 ' 
Expendllure end Funding Analysts 

Difference belween General fund surplus or deHclt 6,'66,491 [24,489,000) 171.2991 [995,520) (19,389 .3281 
and Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure 

I 
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provblon of 
Services 

Ad)ustmenls between Funding and Accounting Basis 
2017118 

AdjUStments t10m General Fund to arrl"" at the - - ·r AdJuslrncnts for · Net Change tor - - Other Statutory - - Other non- ~ Total 
Comprehe-nsive lncornc and fxpc•nd1turc Stotcm,nt l Capital, the Pension Adjustment• >latutory' i adjustments 
Amauuts.~---=--- ·- . _ _ _ _ Purnascs Adius.ttncnf~ _ . 1 Adlus.tmcnt~ -

• £ £ ~~ £! 

Strategic Policy & Resources (4.190.3631 [3,296.634) [174.0921 3.426.400 (4,236.6891 

Clly Growth & Regeneration (3.607.215) 1498.514) (7.325) (1,755.600) [6.068,6541 

People & Communities [12299,208) (3,725.4161 [1.656) 1240.6661 [16.267.1481 

Plonnlng & Ucend ng . 1575.7221 14,990) 1560.712) . 
Net Cost of Services (20.296,786) (8,098.286) (188.265) 1,430,134 (27,153,203) 

Other Income and Expenditure lrom the 
Expenditure end Fund!ng Ana~ 9.146.929 11.972.714) 125.2771 1734.733) 6,414,205 I 

Difference belween General Fund surplus or defk:it 
ond Comprehensive Income end Expenditure 
Statement SUIPI~ or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services J 11.149,8571 {10,071.000) [213.5421 695,401 120.738.9981 

Eoc h committee Is responsible for the delivery of key services to the Coundl and the main services Included In each committee ls os follows: 

Sllateglc Potlcy and ReJourceJ CommiHae 
The net expenditure of this commlll ee Includes Legal and Cllllc Services. Rnonce and Resources. City Orgcn!sotlon Structure and Mo)or Projects and Corporote 
Prloritlesw1th Humon Resources and Good Relations. 

City Growth and Regeneration CommiHee 
The net expenditure ot the commlllee Includes Economic Initio lives and City Regeneration, City Events and Venues Including Off·Street Cor Pa!Xlng. Place and 
Economy one! Posts Estates ond Zoo. 

People and Communltles Comm!Hee 
The net expendlure of the committee Includes Cleonslng, Woste Monogement ond vehicles, Parks, Cemeteries ond Leisure Centres. Environmental Heollh, 
Neighbourhood and Development ond Community Services, 

Planning and Ucenslng 
The net expendRlre Includes Planning ond BuDding Control se!VIces. 
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Employee Benefits Expenses 
Other Services Expendilure 
Support Service Recharges 
Deprec'ation, Amortisotion.lmpairmenl 
Interest Payments 
Gain on the Disposal of Assels 
Olher Expenditure 
Total ExpendHure 

7 

11 
9 
8 

E E 
88,602.500 84,658,091 

t 26,408,328 t07,B09.591 

19.025,057 19,918.535 
1.811.731 l.749,388 
(80,080) 5,166,932 

3,482.942 5.412.542 
23'1,250,478 224,715,079 

Income~----- -. ------- · ·· · · --- - - -. · -·-. -- ·- 2018/19 . -- - -- 2017; 18 - • 

Fees, Charges and other service Income 
Interest and Investment Income 
District rote income 
Government grants ond Contributions 
Support Service Income 
Other Income 
Total Income 

(Surplus) or DeRcH on tile Provision of Services 

9 
10 
10 

cl E 
{44,276.478) (42.480,377) 
{13,984.884) (6.894,671) 

(I 54,77 6.084) {1 50.540.780) 
(8.212.096) (7.479.397) 

(221.249.542) (207,395.225) 

18,000,'136 17,319,854 

b Revenue frorn confrocls wlfh service recipients -. . • . • - - - . • ' "' - - . - :-. ~ ~· • ~ 7:"::..,-::f;. 

On transition to !FRS 15. there is no impact on the Belfast City Council revenue recognition for contracts with customers. 

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement for contracts with service recipients: 

l;l@§·llijii.J .• &PidlfiJ.JGbt3§1§31·l!§.!f 

Strategic Policy & Resources 
City Growth & Regeneration 
People & Communities 

Total Included In Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statem~tnl 

NoMs 
. 201811 9 1017/1 8 

£ E 
3,923,655 

911,423 
3,146,839 

7.98l.917 

.J 
l.449,778 

639,036 
3,174,819 

5.263.633 

Revenue from contracts with service recipients includes services such as the provision of IT support, the provision of off street cor parking facinties. 
and lhe sole of recyclote. Income is recognised as the contract obligation is satisfied and received in arrears otter each event. 

The Council has appfled the accounting stondord to determine revenue recognition under I FRS 1 5. 

Amounts included in the Balance Sheet for contracts with service recipients: 

Receivables, which are included in debtors 
Contract Assets 
Contract Liabilities 
Other 
Tolallnc:luded In Net Assets 

1,947,969 

1,947,969 

1.597.451 

1,597.451 



Adjustments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulallons - - · -- - ------ - --- --- ·---...-, 
Amounts inc:lud!!d in the Co-mprehensive Income and Expcnd1ture Statement but required by statute to be excluded when determining the · 
Movement-on the General Fund Balance for the year. :._" ; ·• ._ < 

_ . _ -~ ~otes £ _£ _ ,! ~ 
Amounts lncludea In the Comprehen!lve Income and Expenditure Statement but required by sialule to be excluded when 
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance fer the year: 

mpairments (losses & reversals) of non-current 
assets 

Derecogn'tion (other than disposal) of non-current 
assets 11 

Revoh.tat:on increases/decreases token to 
S!Jrplus/Defic:il on the Provi~·on of Services 

Depreciofon charged in the year on non-current 
assets 

Net Revenue expenditure ful"ded from capitol 
under statute 

Carrying amount of non c urrent assets sold 

Proceeds from the sole of PP&E. investment 
property and intangible asset• 

Difference betweeil finance costs colc:uloted on 
on accounting basis and f.nonce costs colculoled 
in accordance with statutory requirements 

Net charges mode for refrement benefls in 
ac cordance with IAS ' 9 

Olrect reven'Je f.nanc:·ng of Capital Expenditure 

Capitol Grants and Donated Assets Receivable 
and Applied in year 

Capitol Grants Rece"vob e and Unappned in year 

Roles Claw-Back Reserve 

Adjustments in refafon to Short-term compensated 
absences 

Adjustments in relation to lessor Arrangements 

londfill Regulations Reserve Adjustment 

Provisions Discount Role Reserve Adjustment 
Amounts no! Included In the Comprehen!lve 
Income and Expenditure Statement but required by 
statute to be Included when determining the 
Movement on the General Fund Balance fer the 
year 

Statutory Provision for the financing of Copilot 
Investment 

EmployM contributions payable to the NILGOSC 
and retirement benefits payable direct to 
pensioners 

11 

11 

12 

lie 

B. 24 

20 

12.25 

10 

10 

26 

26 

26 

20 

(6,312.957) 

18.313.014 12.000.057 

350.000 

(430.080] (80.080] 

38.626.000 

(9.239.567) 

(2.919,677) 

(133.186) 

13,595 

57.704 

(5,87 4,116) 

(14,337.000) 

3,291,888 

16.626.647 

8.612.078 

(3.445.146) 

19.918.535 

5.166.932 

23.597.000 

(5.5 I 8.199) 

(2.541 ,228) 

(30,605) 

26.160 

217.987 

(5,876,1831 

(13.526.000] 
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e rronst_ers ~ . r~~~~~?!Y ano ot er - ------- r-~~;~ -~ ~ .. --:-:7·-~--.... - . __ _, ... -~-- - ..: 

earmarked reserves .... .• . . · 2018/19 2018/19 2017/lB . 2017/18 · 

a 

b 

Notes £ £ E £ 
Capital Fund 
Interest 
FromCapilal 
Other 25c 247,604 247,604 [1.514.3991 (1,514,399) 
Leisure Mobilisation Fund 
Interest 
Other 25d 262.632 262.632 240.666 240 666 
Caplla1 Receipts Reserve 
Interest 
Other 25 
Other Funds and earmarked reserves 
Interest (10.688) (6.401) 
From Other funds 
Other 25e j150.000l (160.688) j150.0001 (156.40t) 
Unusable reserves 
Capitol Adjustment Account 

349,548 (1.430.134) 

Cast of Scrvfces on Continuing OperatiOns ~-- ~ .-- : --~~ .·-;:;---~- .... --.;--=:-·- .......... -----:-:-.. =~~':'-::~ 

Gcnorol power of competence _ --:- [ . ~ . · • , -;--·~-:-·-:-.--:·~: -·;-·- - -···--.--_ -···-· ·;~~-;-;:--- ·-··-.-.-., 

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Northern lrelond)2014, the Council has the power to do anything that individuals generally may 
do. Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is not limited to benefitting the area or its residents 
nor is it limited by existing powers. 

There wm no expenditure under the power of competence during 2018/19. 

- - - - -- - - --- - - - --- -- - --- - -

ExternoiAUdi1Fees ;7".- -·-~· ---::- \.·-;1·-:;:·:- ,_ .. --;--:-.-~·""""""=·-... - ---. ~ -~--:;: ... -~-~:·.---:·: 

The Council has incurred the following costs relaling to the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of gran! claims and other 
services provided by the Councils extemol auditors. 

-."-- -cc ·· '· ··- ---------- ·---- --·.·~c :-; • 2018/19 -- 201 7/16 

External Audit Fees J 78.000 I 78,000 
Notional Fraud lniliolive I 1.9821 . 
Performance Improvement worl: I 25.000 I 22.200 

- - - -- -- -. - - ---- - ·- -- -- -· - -
"': ...;._-;. ~ ... -"""': ; : .... 104,982 . : .. ; 100 200; . - - .... 

The were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by !he appointed auditor over and above those described above. 
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a ,Finance Leasn (Council as ltusllf) 

The Council leases our a number of land assets by ong term leases with lease terms from 250 to 999 years. The leases for250yeors 
ore on a perpetual basis and if is assumed the leases wi be renewed so the economic subslcnc;e is similar to disposal. The rental 
income is either nil or 5p per annum. Rent is not normally received on these properties and future minimum lease income is 
assumed to be nil. 

The present value of lease payments receivable under the ffnonce ease orrongements is recognised m a receivable and 
included in both short and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable and the present value of the 
amounts receivable is recognised os unearned finance income. 

No contingent rents were recognised os receivable by the Council. 

---- - -- --- ---- ---

r.---- .... --'---:·--·-....... __ ... _ .-----;------~ --:::--- ~- ........ ,.:=! -,.·.-.~ .... ~·~~ 
blQf'erallng~{CounclrOiliilar) 

' 

!'l>e Counc::l in accordance with ifs statutory end discretionary responsibilities, 'eases out property and equipment underoperoling leases for the 
fo llowing purposes: 
• for the provision of ccmmun·ty serv:ces, such os sporls facil ties, lourism services and commun'ty centres 
- for economic development purposes to provide suit ob e affordable accommodation for small local businesses 
- any other purposes 

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive •ncome and Elcpendilure Slatement·n the current year amounts to £6,.440,849 (prior year 
£6 714,318). No contingent rents were recognised. 

The lease contracts ore all non-concenable and do not include an e~tens·on option. The lease lerms ore between 1 and 125 years. Future 
minimum lease income is set out be ow: 

--- - - · ·---- -·---·--~----::- --- 2016/19 '-.-- ·- ---- 2017/16" ___ -

Minimum lease rentals receivable: 
No later than I year 
later than I year and no later than 5 years 
later than 5 years 

. -.------~------~ .. -- -- .. - .... ,_ . 
,.. • I 1! 

I 
I 
I 

Land and Vehicles, Plant 
Buildings and Equipment 

£ £ 

6.330,814 I I 
21.156,154 I I 

422,37 4.653 I I 
- -

..... ;.""""" 449.861.621' - ~- -

Land and Vehic les, Plant 
Buildings and Equipment 

£ £ 

6.298,405 I 
21.087,235 I 

422.161.184 1 

449,546,824 -::.~~~; .:..! 

The assets leased by the Council to third parties are included in the following categories of Property, Plant and Equipment with carrying values of: 

Cost 
AccumutoTea aeprec1anon ana 

. : 
Lai\cl and Vehicles. Plant 
Buildings anif Equipment 

£ £ 
88,905,000 -

Land and Vehicles. Plant 
lluDdlngi and Equipment 

£ £ 
93,901.169 -

impairments at I April - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year - - - -
Impairments 4,525.000 - (4,600.0001 -
Revoluotions 2,500,000 - (396.169) -
Transfers and rectossificotions 1,300,000 - - -
Disposais 1350,000) - - -

I 
,,_ ... ,. ·">~,.-:~ ·': 'llf." ~ ;:.:. ;'~;';· _(.: • . ; : I Il l :: .. "' '·0 I 

c Finance Leases (CouOc:Uasliiiii) 

The Council has a number of a ssets of land held by long term leases from 980 to I 0,000 years. Rental income is between 1 p to £32 per annum, if 
demanded. Rent is not normally demanded on these properties and therefore future minimum lease payments ore assumed to be nil. 

The assets acquired under these leases are carried os property. plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts: 

s;::.~~r·-- ··- ~~- ... -- .. - - -- ·--- ..... ,. __ 2018{19 '--:-: 2017118 --:,~ 

O ther Land and Buildin s 
Vehicles. Plant, Furniture and Equipment 



d OperaHng Leases (Counc:ll as lessee) 

The Council is leasing o number of office buildings with lease terms up to 25 years and vehicles/office equipment with lease terms up to 4 years. 

The expenditure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year n relation to these eases was: 

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were mode or rece'ved. No sublease income is expected os aU assets held under 
operating tease agreements ore use<l exclusively by the Council. 

The future minimum lease payments due under non-conc:elloble operating teases in future years ore set out below: 

Land and V•hlcles, Pkinl Land and and 
Buildings and Equipment Buildings EquiPCMnt 

£ £ £ £ 

Not later then 1 year 28087 10.116 235.150 8.576 
later than 1 year end no later than S years 1.167.802 7.199 1.106.055 7,118 

Later than 5 years l ,-456,847 - 1.637.16} 
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a 

b 

c 

Employee Costs end Member Allowonc()S - - -
SlottCosts 2018/ 19 2017/ 18 

£ £ 
Salaries and Wages t 68,192.1~7_1 65,511,324 
EmpJC)Yers NIC L 6,331.569 J 6.11 7.551 
EmpJC)Y~rs Svperonnuallon J 14,078.784 I 13.029.216 

-

Total staff costs _ - - -- - -- ·--' -- 88.602.500-- 64 658.091 ' 

The above stall costs Include the costs of voluntary redundancies In 2018/19. These costs total £2.003,028 ond aro disclosed separately In Table 4 
olthe Ramunerollon Repor1. In oddiHon, ogenc:v costs during the yeiJI' amounted to £4,818,572 l20l7/l8 £4,649,576). 

lhe Council's current contribution rote to NtlGOSC scheme Is 19" plus a 2" Dellc:lt Recovery Contrtbullon. 

Average Number of Employees· where FTE represents fuJHim• •qulvlllent employees 

Average NumboroiEmplaye()s - -- - · - 2018119 --- 2017/18 

_ .. 
Strategic Policy & Resources 627 661 
City Growth & Regeneration !53 179 
People & Communltles 1.225 1.239 
Planning & Ucenclng 145 147 

Total Numb()r -- --- ----· --- ---- -- - - - 2, 151'- - 2.226 ' 

-· 2016/1 9 

Fulf.tlme numbers em lo ed 
Pari-time numbers em ed 

Tolol Numb()r - · - - -- - -- • --- - - -- - - 2 305 -- 2.384 • 

Senior Employees' Rcmunnrotlon - 2018/ 19 - 2017/ 18 
~ £ 

£50.001 to £60.000 52 so 
£60.001 to £70,000 15 10 
£70.001 to £80,000 6 11 
£80.001 to £90.0000 .. 2 
£90.00t to £100.000 6 4 
£100.001 to£!!0.000 ~ 2 
£1 10.001 to £120.000 1 . 
£130.001 to £140.000 . 1 
£140.001 to £150.000 I . 

Total Numb()r ----- .._ -- - -- 89 60 ' 

n 
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d Members Allowances . . . 

!""" ... --~-- ---:-···-~:-·~2018i l9~2017/ 18 "1i 

£' 
Salaries - . 
Basic allowance 851.196 849.435 
Mayor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowance 41.050 41.050 
Special Responsibility Allowances 106.691 107.452 
High Sherifrs Allowance 6,250 6,250 
Mileage 14,248 11,410 
Conferences ond Courses 5.997 25.345 
Travel & Subsistence Costs 13.493 34.898 
Miscellaneous Costs . 2.834 
PCSP Allowance 12.360 13.620 

1 Telephone rental 4,410 4,261 

e 

a 

b 

Totai~~--:-:":"7,'T_,~~~~·1 .055 '695~1.096.555 ( 

Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension-Arrangements .,. ·~ -:-:-:,_ ... ~ -.:' - ~ . ··- - - ·_-.--•. -. ~-;: · ::-~:. :~. ;r.,~ 

As o result of Reform on 1st April2015. staff transferred from Centra Government to the Counc~ ore members of the Northern Ireland Civil Service 
Pension Scheme. 

The Northern Ireland Civi Service Pension arrangements ore unfunded multi employer defined benefit schemes but the Deportment for 
Communities is unable to Identity its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to dote octuoriol vo uolion wos carried out os of 31 
March 2016. This voluolion is then rev'ewed by the Scheme Actuary ond updated to renect current conditions and rolled forward to the report'ng 
dote of the DOFSuperannuotion and Other Allowances Resource Accounts os at 31 March 2019. 

For 201 B-19. empoyers' contributions of £201,363 were payable to the NICS pension arrangements of one of three roles in the range 20.8% to 
26.3% of pensionable pay. based on salary bonds. 

The scheme's Actuary reviews employer contributions every lour years following o full scheme voluolion. The scheme funding valuation based on 
dolo os ot31 March 2012 wos completed by the Actuary during 2014-15. This valuation was used la determine employer contribution roles for the 
introducl'on of o new career overage earning scheme from April 2015. The contribution rotes ore set to meet the cost of the benefits accruing 
during 2018-19 to be paid when the member retires. and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners. 

Other Operating Income & Expcndilurc : -- • ·-.. - ---·----·- -- · -- ----.-----=-----~~ 

Surplus/Deficit on Non-Current Assets {cxcllnvcstmenf Properties) ~ · · • · · · · · -·· · --------. --~----

. - - _- - -- - 2018119 ·. -- 2017/16 ~· 

£ £ 

Proceeds from sole (30.080) (3,445.146] 

Carrying amount of non-current 
assets sold (excl Investment 
Properties] - 8.612.078 

(30.080) 5.166.932 

£ £ 

ltncome I I f;Ex;.:.:::;p:::e~nd:::;i"'tu_r_e--------1------+------1 
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c: 

d 

-:---~=- - ---c::- -- _c:o201B/19~2017/1B '" 

£ £ 
Lease/hire ourchose Interest -
Bank interest - -
Government Loan Interest 1.133.342 1.682.860 
Commercial Loan Interest - -
Other interest 78.389 66.528 

1.811.731 1.749,386 

------=-.---~.- -- - - -- - _2018/19 ___ 2017/18 -

£ £ 

Bank Interest 82.444 56,769 
Employee cor loon interest 4.677 1.861 
NI HE Loon interest receivable 21 .226 115.322 
Investment income on Fund Balances 
Capitol Fund - -
Repoif3 & Renewals Fund - -
Election Fund 10.688 6.401 
Other Investment income - -

t19.035 180,353 

Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets ':--'~:~-~-:-;.~"'l":':~~ 

- -- _--c---:: - --~" - 2018/19 ____ ' 2017/18 -

Net interest on lhe nel defir>ed 
benefit liability (asset) 

3047.000 

Surplus/(Dclicil)ontradingopcralions -:::- -·~-.-£--: ---;:~---~-----_-- _ -:----:-- --.~ ~~---···--

-~. : - -.y.z:_-:_ :· ----2018/19.::-::.:: 2017/lB::: 
£ 

jtncome from trading 
Expenditure 

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year 

e Income. Expenoitureandchanges in Fair Value of Investment Propenies-:;:-_----- -.-, -,--.-_ -~ 

£ £ 
Income 1ncluC11ng rental 1ncome 16,440,8491 (6,714.318) 
Expenditure 589,022 814,519 
Net income from investment 
properties IS 851.8271 15.899 .799] 
Surplus/dellcH on sale of 
Investment Properties 
Proceeds from sole (400,000] -
Carrying amount of investment 
properties sold 350.000 -
{Surplus) /deficit on sole of 
Investment Properties: (50.000] -
Changes In Falr Value al 
Investment Properfles 17.025,0001 4,996,169 

(12.926,8271 (903.630! 
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ffnoncingt~ndlnvcstm~nllncome·· ~·-~---- -- -- .·~-~-------- ~ ~-~~ 

and Expenditure '. · 2018/19 · 2017/18 .. • ~':1 

Exp~tnditure Grass Income 
£ £ 

pnreresr rayaole and Similar 
Charges 1.811.731 -
Interest and Investment Income - 1119.0351 

Pensions interest cost 3.324.000 -
l~urpluS((UetJCIII on trocllng 
operot1ons - -
Other investment Income 939.022 (6.840,8491 
!Changes 1n fa1r Value ot 
Investment Properties - (7 .025.000) 

:-- - .. - --.--- -- - 2018/19 2017/18 
£ I General 

Other 
(5.159.2~1] I (4.938.1 ~9] I 
(5,159 .231 J (4.938,1691 

~ . 
ExpenCIIture 

£ 

1.811.731 
1119,0351 

3.324.000 

15.901,8271 

(7.025.000] 

Expenditure 
£ 

1,749,388 

-
3.047.000 

-
814-519 

4,996.169 

Gross Income 
£ 

-
1180,3531 

-

-
[6,714.318) 

-

Expenditure 
£ 

1.749,388 

1180.3531 

3,047,000 

-
15.899.7991 

4_996.t69 

b 

--~~~~:-r--.:-:-··-- -- 2018/19 ---2017/18 -

£ £ 
Government & Other Grants - . 
Conditions met and applied in 
veer 
Other - -

c Capito!GronlsondDonotadAsscts-Applied -· ~ --··-·---- ·· - ---- - --- ·- ------;--~-~-

~ ·.-~:-. ----:------.--~2018/19 ;-:-:~. - 2017/18 -::' 

£ £ 
Government & Other Grants - (2.867.245] (2.477,979] 
Conditions met and appfled in 

I veer 

Government & Other Grants -
Transfer from receipts in advance (42432] (63,249] 
1 oonoted Assets- L:onditlom met -
1 uonateo Assers- rranster trom 
donated assets creditor [10.000] -

(2.919 .677] (2.541.228] 

d Ccpifal grants from copltol receipts unapplied ..:.~-~-:-~··-. "-·" _..,~~~·-::-:-.::-· _ • .: ~-;'E:~~-"=~"'1~ 

. .... . • 2018/19 - 2017/18 

£ £ 
1 ~.>ovemmenr ll. umer ~.>rants • 
Conditions met ond not applied ·n 
year - -
Copilot grants from capita 
receipts unapplied (133.1881 -

(133.188] 

7S 



Current yeor [154,726.0841 (149,511.7801 
Finalisation· previous yeor 50,0001 11.029.0001 
Tronsitionol Relief - . 
Finolisolion • other years (91.6831 121.4401 

(154,867.767! IJ50,562,220! 

District Role Income 1154.867.7671 1150.562.2201 

Revenue Gronts 15,159.2311 14.938.1691 

Capitol Grants from cooitol receipts unopolied fl33.1881 

Capitol Gronts ond Conlributions 12.919.6771 12.541.2281 

r _ ------ ~ -~- ------- ·.:·· _-- --· ·--- - _ -- _ --- (163.079,663) _:-_r (T56,041,617)1 
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Belfast Clly Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
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VoluoHons 
The Council is not aware of any material changes in freehold and leasehold properties. The land and buildings assets held by the Council were valued originally os at I April 1997 by the Volualions and lands 
Agency, in accordance with the statements of asset voluclion practice and guidance notes ot the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. The Council operates c rolftng programme for the vcluallon of its lend 
ond building proper1ies with approximately 25% of these being revalued discretely by physical inspection each year. and the remainder being revo ued by o desktop exercise. 

In the 2018/19 year, land and buildings including investment properties hove been valued os cl31 March 2019. This revaluation was carried out by Land and Property Services, o port of the Deportment of 
Anonce. 
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Capitol Commitments 
A total of 8 capitol contracts were entered into during the period: 

Project Name Dale Capital 
Commitment 

Belfast Beacons 01/05/2018 110.000 
Ufrdio Playing Fields 01/07/2018 700,000 

Peace IV Shored Spaces 01/06/2018 250,000 

Old Golf Course Rood 22/06/2018 225,000 

Navorra Place 28/08/2018 300.000 
Goswori:s Public Realm 01/09/2018 250.000 

Whiterise MUGA 01/1212018 135,000 
City Hall Emergency Uchting 09/01/2019 181,000 

Total 2,151,000 

Effects of Changes In Estimates 

During the course of financial year 201 S.19. the Council reviewed its accounting poicy for community assets and so adopted the historic cast option. where applicable, for the recognition and measurement of 
community assets os set out in the Code. This was to present mare cteol1y to users of the Council's financial statements the amount of resources invested by the Covnc~ in its community assets. Community 
assets with deprecioble components hove been re-lifed from 1 April 2017 os follows: 1 o years for playgrounds, 30 years for infrastructure assets; on appropriate period for other deprecioble assets dependent on 
individual chorocterlslics. A depreciation charge has been oppfied to community assets in the 201S.19 finonicolyeor, and the 2017-18 comporalives hove been adjusted accordingly. The finanicol effects of 
these changes. and the prior year reslolements to the 2017-18 comporalives. ore set out in more detail in Note 31. 

There were no material changes in accounting estimates for other classes of properly. ptonl and eqlipment during the period. 

Surplus Assets 

Surplus assets ore non-current assets that ore not being used to deliver services but which do not meet the criteria to be classified os either investment properties or non-current assets held for sole. Assets held 
for soles ore assets which ore not being used to deliver services and whose economic value will be reofised by cfLSposol, ore actively being marketed, and ordinarily are expected to be disposed of within 12 
months of lhe balance sheet dote. 

Impairment 

There were material impairments to property and investment property during the period. Impairments over £500.000 a re detailed in the table below: 

Asset Amount of impairment Asset c lass Reason 
£ 

Olympia leislXe Centre (1 .597.912) Operational building Change in basis of valuation at 
31.03.2019- see note below 

Sum of material impairments aver (1.597.912) 
£500.000 

---- - - - --

Capitol expenditure on Olympia leisure Centre while it was under construction was measured on the historic cost basis. The leisure centre was brought into operation recently and Its value was remeasured to 
depreciated replacement cost basis. the valuation method for this type of speciofised property. to reflect its clJII'ent estimated service potential. 
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BeKast City Councn 
Notes to the Financial Statement. 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Depreciation 
The useful fives ond deprec:iallon rates a pp" ed to calculclle the depredation are aulllned In Note 1. 

Intangible assets relate to landliD closure costs with a net book value of £nil (2017/18. £nU) and a grass cost before amortisation ot 
£16,700k (2017 /18: £16,700k); and purchased licensed software and related Implementation costs with a net book value of £333k 
(2017/1 B: £462k), and a gross costs before amortisation of £2.409k (2017/1 B: £2.409k). 

Intcngiblc A"cts- --- · · - • -· • - -- ----- ~-- -·- <019/1 9 -__...-,017!1 8 

Balance at start of year: 
Grass ccnyfng amounts 
Accumulated amorilsctlon 
Net canyfng amount cl start of year 
Additions 
Amortisation for the period 

Comprising: 
Grass canying omounts 
Accumulated amortisation 

£ 

19,108,746 
(18,647,091) 

461,655 

(128.949) 

19,108.746 
(IB.n6040) 

£ 

18.990.754 
(1 8,530,885) 

459,869 
72.650 

(1 16.206) 
45.3<12 

19.108.746 
(18.647.091) 

Net corrvino'nriiounl ot t:n•J ot ye-or 332 706 ~6 1 65~ 

The tollowlng Items of Income and e~peose have been accounted for In the Ananclng and Investment Income and Expenditure 
fine In the Comprehensive Income ond ~pendlture Statement: 

Investment Propcrtic• --- - - - - ·- - - 31/03!2019 ' - 31 / 03/2018 
£ £• 

6.440.849 6 714 318 
res 589,022 814.519 

5,851.827 5,899,799 

The fo owing table summaries the movement In the fai- value of Investment properties over the year: 

Investment Propcrlics . - ' ·- - - - • 2018119 2017118 

Balance at start of the year 
Additions 
Dispose Is 
Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 
Other changes 

£ 
88.905.000 

(350.000) 
7.025,000 
1.300.000 

£ 
93.900.000 

1.169 

(4,996.169) 

Botance c• c>n<J of lht> yocn -- • • • • • - _ _ · H MO ooo 88.905.000 

Investment Properlles are comprised of the following properties, all held cl valucllon: 

- -

lnv.,stme>n! P1opcrty 2018/19 2017/18 

fndustrlol Estates 
Commercial Units 

£ 
73.800.000 
23.080.000 

£ 
72.300.000 
16.605.000 

BatoriCe ql cnc: of th/fy-.,cr - - - _- - --- - - -- - 96 sao ooo 88 905.000 

Summary of the not book values of non-current ossets as reported In the balance sheet 

:;.~ - -.: .... -----·---------·~--~------- lnv~s,tmvnt _-;;_ .. _.-;: ~- .... -l- ---- -
.Non current ns~t"ls _ · Totcl PP!.E H~rlfC!Jl' A~·u~h __ PrQpcdic~ l _ ~ lntcng blo A~sch __ _ )OTAL 

N•Uook Valu• as al31 MCITCh 2011 

Net ehcnga In c:cst or value lion 
Oepreeloflon ond lmporment In tha yaor 

I 
613,025,011 

29.473.892 
( 1,868.3.511) 

27,605,534 

8,596,083 

527,277 
[98.273) 

429,004 

88,905,000 461.655 

7,97S.OCXJ 
[128,949) 

7,975,000 (128,949) 

1 
710,987,749 

37,976,169 
(2.09S.Sil0) 

35,880,589 

:------- - -----:,--- ------;i---- ---:-- - -,- ---~---1'------------; 

NctBookValu ro osot31 March2019 , 6~0.hJOS45 __ 9025087 _ 96.6_!!0000 _ 33~706 ' _ 746866338 



Fair Value Hierarchy 

Oelclls of the Coundrs Investment Prcperlles and lnfamallon about the fclrvolue hlercrchy os ot31 March 2019 and 2018 ore os 
follows 

--

2018/19 Rccuulngt<lot Quokd Prlcc•s on uct.vc· mrllkc!• Olhct Sl!)nillcanl Fair value o~ at 3 hi 
volut.• rnco-:.urcmt"nl: tor •dcnllcul m>ct• (lcvcll) ~igrtihcon! unobsc.:rvnble Motch 2019 
u~rno ob~crvub!c inpuh 

Input> {levl'i {levc·l3) 
2) 

t f £ - - - - f 

Industrial Estates and 
Commercial Units . 96.880.000 - -
Total . 96.880.000 . . 

2017/18 Rl!c:.-Urtul' foir Quoted Pdccs in actiVL~ murl<cls Olhc1 - ~ Slynilicunl - Fair valu(!' as al3l st 

vu/uc mco:.urcmcnh fmldcnltcul m'"" (Level I) sranllicont unob!.c:rvulllc March 2018 
u•lng otJ~crvalllc input~ 

mpuh {lc•vt:l {lcvt'l J) 

r : ! . 

Industrial Estates ond 
Comrnen:Jol Units . 88.905,000 . . 
Tota l . 88.905.000 . -
Transfers between t.vels of the lair value hierarchy 

There were no transters between levels I end 2 during the year. 

Investment f'Toperflcs ora considered to hove enough uniqueness so they no longer a:m be compered to slmOor Items that ore 
used for reference In on active mcfl:el, and ore valued using Inputs olhor than quoted prices that ore observable. AJ such, they 
are valued using level21nputs. 

Valuation tee hnlques used to determine Level2 and 3 Fair Values for Investment Properties 

Significant Obs&rvable Inputs - level2 

In 2018/19. ell Investment Properties were meosured using the some malhodology os In 2017/18. The Inputs 11sed to value these 
properties have been clossllled os Level 2. other slgnlflconl observable Inputs. 

Highest and best use of Investment Properties 

In estimating the fair value of the Coonclfs Investment l'roper11es, the hlglmt and best use of the propert'es Is their current use. 
relecting best estimates ol folr value given by current prices on a mortal for slmlar properly In similar locctons. 

Valuation Techniques 

There has been no change In lhe valuation techniques used during the year for Investment Proper! es. 

Gains or losses arising from changes In !he lair vo~.>e of the Investment properties ore recognised In Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services- Rnondng and Investment Income and Expenditure Rno. 

Valuation procau tor Investment Prapeclles 

The fcrvalue of the Council's Investment properties Is measured at market valve os cl 3 1 March 2019. All valuallons are corned 
out by lend end Property Services. In accordance with their methodologies and bases for est:mcilon as set out In the professional 
stondarcn of the Roycllnslltullon of Chartered Surveyors. Tha Counclrs valuollon experts wart cl0$ely with Council flnance officers 
repcrilng dreclty lo the Chief Ananclol Offlcer on a regular basis regarding all valuation matters. 

Hcrilagc A.scls · 

The Council's collection of heritage cruets consists of worb of art. civic Items. donated works ol art. and certain historic buUdings 
and monuments with historical artistic. scielnllllc. lehcnologlccl geophyslccl or envrnnmental quoBtles that oru held and 
maintained pMclpolty for their conlrlbuflon to knowledge and cu lure. These assets ore reported In !he balance sheet at 
voluollon; or cl Insurance vot~allon os a proxy for mortel value. or. !I Ills not possible to obto!n a valuation. they ore measured at 
historic cost less depreclotlon. amortisation orlmpclmenl losses. Insurance voluollons are updated on a perlodlc bosls. On the 
occasion that no cost con be measured accurately for an Item. Ills held on the balance sheet at a nollonol value of£ 1 for 
stewardship purposes: there oru currently 164 of these Items recorded by Be lost Otv cou~cll. 

Talal ·• 530,977 3 941 298 

No amounts were transferred from property, pant and equipment under construction to hefltcge assets during the year. 

There were no dlspcsols of herllcge assets during 2018/19. 



g Assets Held for Sale 

Assets Held lot Sale·~----·-------- - Cu11cnl - ___ . Non CU!!l'Tll"-- 1nlol ~.-·-.:---o 

£ £ £ 
Cost or ValuaHon 
Balance cs et 1 AprU 2018 - - - I 
Ad ustmenls between cost/value & deprec!ctlon/impcrment - - 266.~71 TransfetTed from Non-Current Assets durinQ veer 266l/)7 -
Assets Held for Sale Donations - - -
Assets Held for Sale Revaluation lncreo$E!S/dec:recses to Revaluation - - - I 
ResetVe 
Revaluation tncrecses/decreoses token to Surplus or Deficit on the - - -
Provision of Services 
Assets Held for Sole lmporment @Cost to Provision of Services - - -
OerecOQnlllon- Ols~ls - - -
OerecOQnltlon • Other - - -
Reclosslfled from Cum!nt Assets Held for Sale to non current Assets Held - - -
tor Sole 
TransfetTed to Prc>Deriv. Plant & EQuipment durinQ year . - -
Balance as al31 March 2019 266 607 - 266 607 

lmoalrmenl 
8clance os at 1 Acnl2018 - - -
Ad ustments between cost/Value & depreciation/impairment - - -
lmporment losses/reversals token fa Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of - - - ' 
Services 

Derecoonlllon- Olspescls - - -
Oerecoonlllon • Other - - -
Reclcsslffed from Current Assets Held for Sale to non cU1Tent Assets Held - - -
Transferred to Property, Plant & Eguloment durino veer - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - - -
Net Book Value 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 266 607 - 266 607 
Balance as al31 Morch 2018 - - -
Three non-current assets were reclosslfled to cU1Tent assets held for sole during 2018/19. No non current assets held for sole were 
disposed of during 2018/19. 

- - - - - - - - -- - - -- - - -

Asoch Held fm Sol" Current Non Cu11cnt Total 
'! £ £' 

Cost or Valuallan 
Botonce os et 1 April 2017 3 197000 - 3197000 
Adjustments between cost/Value & deoreclatlon/imocrment - -
Transferred from Non-Current Assell durtng year - -
Assets Held for Sole Donations - - -
Assets Held for Sole Revaluation lncrecses/decreoses to Revoluollon - - -
Revaluation tncreo$E!S/decreoses token to Surplus or Deficit on the . - -
Assets Hold for Sole lmocrmenl @ Cost to Provision of Services - - -
Derecoonltlon • Dlsooscls 3197000 - 13197 000 
Derecoonltlon · Other - - -
Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sole to non current Assets Held - - -
Transferred to Procerlv. Plant & Eouloment durina veer - - -
Balance as af 31 March 2018 - - -
Impairment 
Bclonce os ell April 2017 - -
Adlustments between cost/Value & dePreck:rtton/imoarment - - -
lmpo!rment fossestreveBOis to~en fo Surplus or Deflc!t on the Provision of - - -
Services 
OerecOQnlllan - D~posols - - -
DerecoQnltk:rn -Other - - -
Reclosslfled from Current Assets Held for Sole to non current Assets Hold - - -
Transferred to Prot>erlv. Plant & E<:luloment durlna veer - - -
Balance as al31 March 2018 - - -
Three non-curtenl ossels held for sore were disposed of during 2017/18. Including slles cl Moysfield end Primrose Street. 

The gain on ossets classified to he'd for sole ond sO:d during the yec~r was £83k. 



h fair Value Hierarchy for Sui'J>IUs A11els 

Surplus assets are non-operational assets thot do not meet the conditions to be clossllled as os:sets held for sale. They are 
measured at fair volue. reflecting the actuot marl:et slate and conditions at the balance sheet dole (which Is the voluatlon dole) 
with best evidence of la~ value In an active marl:et for similar P!Qpertlesln the some foc:gtion. The council classifies assets to 
surplus assets on the advice of lis estates monogement officers and In consultation wllh Its exfemal property valuers. 

The surplus assets held by the council comprise a number of P!Qpertles Including lend. buildings or sites of land and buildings 
combined, which hove not reached the stage where the council con marl:et these for sale odvantogeously, or where the 
PfQpertles hove restrictions that prevent them currently being brought to market. 

Details of the Council's surplus assets and lnfonnollon about the fair value hierarchy os at 31 March 2019 and 2018 ore os follows: 

--- -- - ·-· Quotc•d P!lccs in 'cclivc markets tor Olhcr-,onificnnl Slgnr!l~o-;;1 -==~ fair vat;;;:'" cl -1 2018/19 RL•cunmg fair valuc 
fll'-'Cl!.Urcme;nl:o u~1ng rdcnlical """" (!cwll) nbscrvnb!c.• unol.Jscrvnble . Jhl Mmch 2019 • 

! inputs (Lcvc12) ; inputs I 
1 L • 

1 (Level 3) . - .__ ---- --' -

l I 
land - 1.824.001 - 1,824.001 
Buildings - 380.000 - 380.000 
land and Bulldlnos combined - J . .cas.ooo - 3.485.000 
Total - 5,689,001 5.689.001 

2017/lB Rccutrong fair value Quoted Prices In nclive markets for , Other slgmficllnl Siglrlficant j FuuvotUCC,s ut ., 
rnL'O:>Utt..~tnenl~ Ll!.th~; . ldcnllcol mscls (Lcvcl1} r obscrvoblt• unobaorvablc , 3ht March 2018 

inputs (level 2} Inputs ' . 
L llcw13) . 

-- - - -- -- - -- -
E I E 

land - 2.584.001 - 2,584,001 
Bulldl~~gs - 380.000 - 380000 
Land and Bulldlncs combined . 4.165.000 - 4,165000 
Tolal - 7,12'1.001 - 712'1,001 

Surplus Assets ore considered to hove enough uniqueness lhot they no longer con be compared to slmhor Items thot are used for 
reference In an active market, and ore valued using Inputs other then quoted prices that ore observable. As such. they are 
valued using level2 Inputs. 

Translen between levels of lhe lair value hierarchy 

There were no transfers between Levels I and 2durlng the year. 

In 2018/19, all Surplus Assets were measured using I he same methodology os In 2017/18. The Inputs used to value these P!Qpertles 
hove been classified os Level 2. other slgnltloant obsO!Vable Inputs. due to the uniqueness of these P!Qpertles. 

HI; hest and besl usot of surplus ouals 

"' estimating the fer value of the Cooncll's surplus assets. the highest and best use of the assets Is their current use. reflecting best 
estlmoles ot fo~ value given by current prices ono mortcet for slmhor property In slmllor locations. 

Valuation Techniques 

There has been no change In the valuotlon techniques used during the year for surplus assets. 

The lai' vo ue of the Council's Surplus Assets Is measured at marl:et valuation os at 31 Morch 2019. All voluotions are comed out 
exlemolty by land and Properly Services. In accordanc e with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out In the 
prQiessional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered SUIVeyoo. The Council's valuation experts work closely with finance 
officers reporting cfweclly to the chief flnonclol offlcer ono regular basis regarding all voluotlon matters. 



12 

13 

Caprlol Expcndituw and Capital financing -· - ~ - ~ ;.:~c ~- . =:-~---· ~ · """:"?r .- .., r-.-..q 

The total amount of capital expenditure Incurred In the year Is shown In the table be ow C nctuding the value of assets acquired 
under finance leases and PFI conlraclsf. together with the resources that have been used to finance 11. Where capital 
expenditure Is to be financed In future years by charges la revenue as assets are used by the Council. the expenditure resu Is In on 
Increase In the Capital Anandng Requrement ICFRI, a measure of the copllal expendHure incUITed historically by the Council 
that is yet to be financed. The CFR Is analysed in the second port of this note. 

-- -- -- - - -- - --- - 1·----Restated 

Cupilnl E•pcndllurc. --- - - -- - - - __ 2018/19~-- 2017/18 
£ 

. - -- - £ 
Opening CapUr::ll Flnanc:lng Requirement 94 318.811 86 217 129 

CapUallnveslmenl 
Property, Plant and Equipment 11 38.848.781 21,963,473 
Investment Properties - 1.169 
Intangible Assets - 72.650 
Revenue Expenditure Fvnded from Capital under Statute 

- -
investments 89,928 276.792 

Sourc:es ol Flnanc:e 
Capitol Receipts I - -
Government Grcnts and Other Contributions I 10 (3.052.8651 (2..S.C1.228) 
Transfers from Eormorl:ed Reserv~ I (89,928) (276.7921 

Sums set aside from Revenue: I 
Orect Revenue Conllibullon$ I (9.239.567) (5.518.199) 
Minimum Revenue Provision I (5.874.116) (5.87 6, 183) 

Clmirig Cnpital Financing Rcqurrcnwnl------------·- --- 115 001.044 94315B11 

hplnrm!lnn of Movements In V cur · 2016/19 Rcstalcd2017!18 

£ ... -- - - -. £ 
Increase in underlyrng need to bom7N 20.682.233 8,101.672 
Assets acquired under finance leases I - I • I 
Assets acqulred under Pfi/PPP controcts I - I - I 

I I I I I I I .. : 
Future Capital Cornmltm<'nl$ • ---- · 

Total net expenditure of £28.800.756 has been Incurred against these profects in the yeor ended 3 ' March 2019. 

Total - .. ------.. _ .. - ----- · · · · · 276 290 - 326,164' 

The cost o f Inventories wriHon dovvn , recognised as on expense and included in 'servlc~' amounted to £643 688 [17/1 B £669 7aoj. 



-

IS Debtors - .. - . -~----- --- ~-- ------- . -- 2018/19 -- - 2017/18 
(I Long Term Ocblou (Rc•tutcdt 

- - - -- - -----·-· -- £ . £ 

Govemmenl De rtmenls - -
Olher Councils - . 
Public corporations and trodina funds . -
Bodies external to aeneral aovemment . -
fmployee cor loans 59.591 59.587 
Revenue Grants . . 
Copltcl Grants . . 
Interest Receivable . -
Copllcl Debtors . -
Loans and advances . -
Rnonce lease debt on - -
Trade debtors 295.208 736.633 
NIHHocns 258.860 340.910 
Other - -
Impairment ollocns and rec:eivabl~ - -
Contrac! Receivables . -

-

Tolallong·Tcrm Debtor< 
- __ ......... ---J. 

--~------ -----------603.659 ----- 1.137.030 ' 

- - - -- - -- --- --

Shorl Term Debtor• 
- 2018/19 2017/18 

(Rc>totcd) 

- - - ...... -- ---· -- --- E - - - £ 

Government De rlments 611 491 320 271 
Other Coundls 58.122 159,488 ' 
Public corporations end lrad!ng funds . . 
Bodies external to aeneral government - . 
NI HE loans 81,9.50 76,9.50 
Employee cor loans 56,516 58,110 
Revenue Grants 5.933.912 3.825.967 
Capital Grants 1.733.211 1.411.696 
Interest Receivable - -
Capital Debtors - -
Value Added Tax 1.948.860 1,976.620 
rrepoyments 3.527.783 4.460.065 
Rnonce lease debtors - -
Other 2.50.722 1.537.174 
Trade receivables 1.117,365 2,534.300 
lmpoimenlloss • Tn::~de rec:elvabl~ f2B3.594 454.252 
Conlracl Receivables 1.947.969 1,597.451 

- - - -- - -

Total Short-Tcrnr DcbtoT' - 16,884 307 17,525 840 

Total Debtors - -- -- - • -- - ·-- - • 17 487,966 18 662,870 

Trade debtors. Inclusive of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows: 

16 Sorrowing• - - - - -- - - -

a Short Tcmr Borrowing _ 2018119 2017/18 

.. - ------------------ --- --- £ -- --- --- £ 
loans re- le wrlh!n one ear 4.000.000 
Rncnce lease Prlncl I 

Tolul Short Term Borrowlr;g :"-~-----4 000,000--. --4,158.529 ; 

b long Term Borrowing -- - ~ - -- - -- 2018/19 -- - 2017/18 

- - - •• -·-- - --- - £ ---- ___ £ 
Between 1 end 2 years 7,136.376 4000.000 
Between 2 end 5 years 5.061.000 15.591.983 
Between5cnd 10yecrs 9,197,934 10.459.399 
In more than 10 veers 37.493.671 2.553.112 . 

Toto! Borrowing · --. --;- 62,888.981 36,763 023 

117 
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----------------------- - - -- - ---------

Co.-dllors 
5hort ktrn Coeditor> 2016/19 2017!18 

-· £ £ 
Government Departments 1.818.188 1.673.415 
Other Councfls 13.010 17.826 
Publlc con>eratlons end tradln11 funds - -
Bodies external to general government - -
Rates clawbcclc 100.01'Xl 350.IXXI 
VAT - -
Remuneration due to employees 583.873 331.117 
Accumulated Absences 1,357,825 1.344.230 
loan Interest Payable 331.903 282.976 
Capitol Creditors 1.450.637 2.375.471 
Receipts In advance 4,473,249 4.440.803 
Trade creditors 2.499.735 2.902.153 
Oeditor Accruals 17,468,846 11.443.711 
Contract Pcyobles - -
Tolal5hoot Term Coeditor< 

. - --- - - .. -- -· - --- - " 30097,266 --- 25.161.702 

• lon[l Tcom CoL·dltor< - · 2018119 2017118 

c 

Other ClL'ddor~ •afrrJn d tJt• u llct_mOJL· t ·· oQ_o_n~c ar £ £ 
Governmenl De rtments - -
Other Covnclls - -
Public caporations and trodlng tunds - -
Bodies external to generot government - -
Rotes clcwboclc: - -
Remuneration due to employees - -
Accumulated Absences - -
Receipts In advance - -
Trade creditors - -
Other 50.386 60.848 
Controct Povcbles - -

- --- ---- ---

To~ollor.clf ,::;-.·,;-c.-edito rs - - -- - . -----.--- - - --- •:.; -'86 I:O.B~B-

Total Cocdtlors 30,147,652 25 222,550 

Pcymc-nl of Invoices - -- -- -- · 

The council has o target. where no other terms ore agreed. of paying supplier Invoices within 30 days. During the year the 
Council paid 61.520 Invoices tolalllng £163,474.395 (2017{18: 58 3191nvolces totalfing £142.055,0441. 

The Council paid: 
56,029 Invoices with 30 calendar days target (2017 /18: 51.4031: 
39.940 Invoices within 10 watdng days target (2017 /18: 39,355f; end 
5,491 Invoices outside of the 30 day target (2017 /18: 6.9161. 

The overoge number of days token to pay suppliers during the year was 15 days (2017/18: 21 daysl. 

The Councll paid 91~ of Invoices within the target of 30 days, against the target objective of m. 
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Provisions - -- . --- --- •-' - --· ---~---
I (Dt'c:1east')/lm::u. a~C' 

In pfo\11 ~~on durl ng 
tnfen:.·~t cos' und/or 

Dolo net: mol 
YL'Qr 

Ufdi~cd durmg Unu~ed amount~ dl:c ou nt rote Doloncc m <1131 
1 Apui2D18 ycur ICVL''r$L'd changes M<1rch 2019 

-----· E - - E - -
[ - £ £ - - £ 

Lcndfill Closure 3,530.260 l26.77el (50.853) - 97.700 3.550,409 

Clcims Mcncgemenl 1,125.952 45.413 . (37.608) - - 1,133,757 

T;;t~l ~ - -;--~4.656212 ----~. ~:'" 18.635--(88461) ------ - -· -~- 97 780~4.684.166" 

18.635 57,704 
40076 

Totol --:c- _- · "4.656.212 ···-· --. 18,635 - "(88461) - ·•• • • - 97,780 ""'- --4 684,166 

Comparative Year 
--- -- - - - ~ • Increase In ln1NL•st c:o,;1 und/or Restated Bclcmc::c 

Ba!nnct.· us at prov1slon dunng Utlli$L'd durmg Unu~cd amounts discount rat<.· as a131 March 

Provisions 1 Apri/2017 year y~or rcVL'"L"d chun!Jes 2018
1 

f £ £ £ E £ 

~lliiimiml~~-.....mm..-mm:~ 
1,125,952 

Totol ----------4 301,417 _____ 168070 --- " [63 764) ----- · --- ----250489--4.656.212 " 

168.070 217.987 
32.502 

- -- - - -- -
Toto! 4301,417 168.070 - (63764) • 250489 4656212 

Landml Closure 

The flnondo provision for the copping end cnnucl monitoring costs required to meet the Council's environment cl obllgctlons 
under the NI EA licence hcs been cgreed on a Local Authority Deed. The dlscounl roles applied on the provision ere based 001 

PWLB borrowing rates cdjusted for lnnctron which has resu:ted In a vclucllon of £3 550.409. 

Claims Management 

A provision of £1,133,757 has been mode In respect of public liability. employers llobiDty end other c oims/legcl cases notified but 
not processed. Adequate Insurance cncngements are In piece covering the Council's cctlvilles cs recommended by the 
Council's Insurance Brokers. The related insurance premiums pcfd ere accounted fOI' in the financlof statements. AI 31 Mcrch 
2019, the to let 1'10blllly for leg cl ccses notified but not processed cmounted to en estlmcled mcxlmum llcbnlly of £2 041.443. 

Flncncicl ln1lrumcnts ~ -~ • - -

Rnanclal Assets as at 31 March 2019 
The Council has the following non-currenllnveslmenls end debtors: 

The Counc:ll's contribution to Belle! LLP Is Included In 'Investments In Assoclctes end Jolnt Ventures' end Is disclosed et the original 
value of the contrlbullcn. 

The mc/Orily of the long term debtor relate to trade debtors cs well cs be cnces with NI HE end ccr loan be cnces with employ~. 

The relevant credit losses hcve been cclculcted and Included In the lmpclrment less belance. 

Current financial cssets. ncmely trade debtors. employee car loans end ccsh belcnces have been assessed and relevcnl credit 
losses cclculaled. These amounts ere Included In the tmpclrmentloss belance of £283.594 for 2018/19. 

The employee ccr locn role Is currenlly 2~.1n compcrslon to the HMRC otl1clcl role of 2~. 

Rnanelal Llobllllles as at 31 March 2019 

The Council Is In receipt of loans from the Deportment of Flncnce ol concessionary Interest roles that differ from the prevailing 
mcrket rates. The foirvclue of these loans ls£69,174,552 (2017-18 £41.315.170). 
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a Partl~ipotlon in the Noiihcrn-lwland Local Govcrnmcnfoilrccro' P."iision Fund.~~~!.~.-:::::0 

N. port of the terms and conditions of employment of Ifs officers and other employees. the Council offers retirement benefits. 
Altkough these benefits will not actually be payable until employees ret~e. the Coundl has a commitment to make the payments 
that need to be disclosed at the lime that employees earn their future entitlement. 

The Coundl participates In the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland 
Local Government Offlcers' Superannuation Committee. This Is a funded sckeme, meaning that the Council and employees pay 
contributions Into a fund. calculated at a level Intended to balance the pension's llablr.tles with Investment assets. 

- --- - - -- -

·Transactions relating to retirement bcncfrls- Com-prch..,nslvc Income and fxp~:Odllwrc Slolcmc-rit - ------

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits In the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they ore ecmed by 
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 

However. the charge the Coundlls requ~ed to make against district rates Is based on the cash payable In the year, and the reel 
cost of retirement benefits Is reversed out in the adjustments between accounting basil & funding basis under regulations line, In 
the Movement on Reserves Statement. 

The following transactions have been made In the Comprehenslve Income and Expenditure Statement and the adjustmenb 
between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line. In the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year: 

- -- - - - - -- Note 2018/19 -- - 2017!18 

- ~· - . ... --- --·--- -- ____ £ -- --- ___ £ _____ 

Net cost of services: 
Current service cost 20.655.000 19.951.000 

Post service cost/(galnl " 14.847.000 599.000 ' 
Gains and lasses on settlements or curtailments - -
Net operating exoenditure: 

Net Interest on net defined benefit l.labllitv fassetl 3.324.000 3.047.000 

Total Post-employment Benefits c harged to the Surplus or De!lc:H on the 
Provision ol Servic es 38.826.000 23.597.000 

Mavementln Reserves Statement: 
RevefSCI of net charges made for retirement benefits In accordance with 
IAS 19 and the Code 138.826.0001 123.597.0001 

Actual amount charged against the genercl tund balance tor pensions In 
the veer: 

Employers' contributions payable to scheme 14.337.000 13.526.000 

Net odjustmo>olla GcncJCI Fund - 124,489,000) . (10 071 000) 

The setVIce cost figures Include an allowance for administration expen~es of £250k.ll7 /18 £248k.l. 

•Past Service Cost has been updated to reflect the potentlalllabllilles arising tram the McCtoud judgement end GMP Indexation 
ond Equalisation. This Is explained In further de tan at the end of lhb note. 

i 



.. - -_- _- ---------------------- ·---------------------
Totol gOHl>l(lo>"'') wcogniscd In Other Cornprc•hc·n,ivc·lncomc nmJ Expc·ndrlurc 15 323 000 (1.014 000) 

- - --c As~cb ond liobJIIILcs tn rL'Iction to retirement bt•ncf.t::; 

Rc.._•concWt.Jiiorr of pr!.!~..:ont vnJut..· ol thl:' sr:hcrnL· ticbilitiL's: No le 2018/19 2017/18 
[ [ 

Bolonce os at 1 A 696 976 000 656 080000 
Current servlce cost 20.655.000 19.951.000 
Interest cost 17.9n.ooo 16.919,000 
Conltibutlons by memben 4.190.000 4.166.000 i 

Remeosurement (gains) and losses: 
Acluartal gains/losses arising from changes In ftnandal assumptions 40.332.000 11.937.000 ' 
Actuarial gains/losses arising from demographic changes 129,809 ,000) -
Actuarial gains/losses arising on llobilitles from expellence 196.000 2574.000 
Other I appriCOble - . 

Past servlce coslsl(gains)' 14.847.000 599.000 
Losses/{golns on curlallmernls - -
Uabllllles extinguished on selllemants - -
Estimated unfunded benefits pold 1757.000) 786.000 
Estimated benefits pold (14.889.000) (14.464.000) 

'. . ·' : ... .. ·" 
Rc-condllaHon ol ptc.scnl voluc o' tla.: sdK•rnc o~~cts· No le 2018/19 2017/18 

- - ---- _______________ ....__ ---- --·· ------·------ -- r f 
Balance as ol 1 A 1 562 027 058 532 216 058 
Interest Income 14,653,000 13.872.000 
Conlrfbullons by membels 4.190.000 4.166.000 
Conlrlbullons by employer 13,580.000 12.740.000 
Conlrlbullons In respect of unfunded benefits 757JX1J 786.000 
Remeosuremenl ga!nl(loss) 26,042.000 13.497.000 
Assets distributed on ~tllemenls - . 
Unfunded benents paid 1757.000) 1786,000) 
Benefits oafd ( 14.889.000) (14.464.000) 

Bala11cc os ut 31 Ma~ch --- ·~- ·- ~-.... - - . - . - 605,603 058 562 027 058 

Bellosf City Council employs a buHdlng bloc~ Opp!OOCh In determining the rata ot retum on Fund assets. Hlstortcal markets are 
studied and assets With higher voloflflty ore assumed to generate higher returns consistent With widely accepted capita! market 
principles The assumed rote ot retum on each ossef classls calculated and lha ovOfC I expected rote of refum on assets so 
derived by aggregating the expected refum for each ossa! class ovor the actual asset atlocol!on for the ftmd at 31 March 2019. 

The actual relum on scheme assets In the yeorwcs a ga!n of £40,695k (2017118 gain ot £27.369k). 

- - -

605,603 058 . --562.027058 

' 

'ill 



The Counclfs share ol the Net renslon Uobmty (Included In lhe Balance Sheet): 

--------- -- -- -- - 2018/19 • - 2017/1B-

.. ·-- - - - f - E 

Fair Value of Efnplover Assets 605.603.058 562.027.058 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation !738.398.000) !684,457,000) 

Pension assel/lllablr.ly) of funded Scheme (132,794,9421 (122,429.942) 

Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation (11..320.000) !12.519.000) 

Other movement In the llablntv lassetl Ill appfi=blol - -
Net anetf(llablllly) arising from the deftned benefit obUgallon !144.114.942) (134.948.942) 

Amount In the Balance sheet: 

Uobilltles 1749,718.000) 1696.976.000) 

Assets 605.603.058 562.027.058 
Ncl As>ct/(liobllilyJ - --- - ----- -· ~· -·-- --- - --- (144. 114. 942) - . (134.948.942) 

- - - - -- - -- - - - -

d Schcmc Hdory 
Analysis at schcmc c"cts und liobif,fics 2016/19 201 7/IB 
- £ £ 

Falr Value of Assets In nsion scheme 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Ob atlon 

- - ---- - - - -- - - - -

Surplus/(dcficif) In the Scheme (144.114 942) (134 948,942) 

-- - - - - --- - ---

Amount rct."'ognl~cd In Oth(.~r Complchl:'nsiYL' ltlcornc end 
fxpL ndllurc· 2018/19 2017/18 

E £ 

~~~ 
I Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
lncrease/(decrease) In krecoveroble surp us from membership fall and 
other factors - -
Remeasurements recognised In Other Comprehenslve Income and 
I Expenditure 15,323,000 11.014.000) 

Cumulallvo actuarial gains and losses (37,163,000) (52,486.000) 

History of experience gains and fosses: 

Experlonce gains and (losses) on assets 26.042.000 13,497.000 
Experlence gains and {losses) on Uablllt~ {196.000) (2.574.0001 

The llabDiHes show tke underlying commitments thal the authority has In the long run to poy retirement benefits. The total Roblllty 
of £1«. 1 14.942 has a substantial Impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded rn I he 1\olance Sheot. 

However. statutory arrangements for funding the defidt mean that the financial position of the Coundl remains heal1hy The 
defldt on the North em Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension fund wBI be mode good by Increased contributions over the 
remaining worklng l!le of employees. assessed by the scheme actuary. 

Anolys•s of J.HOJCctt•tJ amount to be charged la the Com~rt.•hcnslvc Income and Ex~cndliult..' Slat(.• men! for Hw y~or to 31 MUfc h-
2020 

31/03/2020 31103/2020 -

- E - -. -- -·--
Pn:)ected current cost 21.954.000 88~ 
Net Interest on the not defined benofil liability (asset) 2.940.000 ll~ 
Past service cost - 0.~ 
Gains and losses on settlements or c urtailments - OM. 

---~- ---......... -_..,_ _____ ..,.. -.. -- - - --- -------------· -~-~-24894,000 ____ 1000% ·-
The Iota! contributions expected to be made to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Ponslan Fund by the coundf In 
theyearlo31 Morch20201s£14,818k. 

fildory of cxpcrlcnct.• gains ond lo~scs - - -- - ... -- -- -- -- .. - · "' · · • _ ;;;: - - ~ 

The actuarial goins/IOSles Identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 20 18{19 can be analysed Into the following 
categories. measured as a percentage of assets« llabnlt~ at 31 March 2019. 



Ucbllilles hove been assessed on en actuarial basls uslng the proJected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that wnl be 
poyable In the future years dependent on assumptions obaut mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Council's Fund liabilities have 
been asse$1ed by Aon Hewltt Umlted, an Independent fiiTTl of actuaries, estimates for the Counclt Fund being based on data 
pertaining to the latest full valuation of the scheme os at 31 March 2019. 

- ---- - -- -- -

Pc-nston Assumptions Scnslllvity Analysis 

The:~ pension figures disclosed fn these flnonclal statements are sensitive:~ to the assumptions used. 

The opproxlmofe Impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit ob'lgofion as at 3 I 
March 2019 Is set out below. 

In each case, only the assumption noted below Is altered; all othm assumptions remain the some and ore sun:morlsed In the 
disclosure above. 

Funded Pension Scheme Beneflb 

Discount Rate Assumption 

Ad ustment to discount rate +O.l~p.a. ·O.l~p.a, 

Present value of the total obligation 72~.~35,000 752,630.000 
% chcnge In the j:lti!Sent value of the total oblklatlon -1.~ 1.~ 

Prolected service cost 21,331.000 22.592.000 
Approximate% change In proJected service cost -~ 2.~ 

Role ol General Increase In Saldtles 

AdJustment to solorv Increase rote +O.l~p.a. -O.l~p.a. 

Present value of the total obligation 742,556.000 734.281.000 
% change In the present value or the total obligation 0.~ -0.60% 
Profected service cost 21.954.000 21.954.000 
Approximate % change In proJected service cost 0.~ 0.00% 

Rate of Increase to Pensions !n Pavmenl and Deterred Pension Assumption 

Ad uslment to pension Increase rate +O.l~p.a. ·0.1%p.o. 
Present value of the total obligation 7 48.428.000 728.5 10.000 
% change In the present value of the total obllgalion 1.40% -1.30% 
Projected service cost 22.592.000 21.331.000 
Approximate %change In projected service cost 2.~ -2.80% 

Post Retirement MortatHy Assumption 

Adjustment to m011ality age rating assumption• • 1 Year +1 Year 
Pre$ent value ot the toto! obllcation 761.933.000 715,068,000 
% change In the present value of the total obligation 3.20% -3.20% 
l~ted service cost 22.796.000 21.120,000 
Approximate% change In pro[ected service cast 3.80% -3.80% 

• A raring of+ 1 year means that members ore rusumed to follow the monotrty pattern of the base table above for an Individual 
that Is I year older then that. 



Major cctcgorJcs ol plan os~cts os pcrccnlogc of fotu~ plan uss.cls -..- .._.- ~- •- - ----.----~ ·--~ - • ., _.. .": 

The Northern Ireland local Government Officers· Penslon Fund's assets consist of I he following categories. by proportion of the 
lofo ossels he d: 

g Northern !~eland Civil Service P"nslon A11ang"m"n!s - - - - - ~ -

The Northern htland Clvn SeNice Pension =ngements are unfunded mulll-employer defined benefit schemes bullhe Council is 
unable lo Identify Is share of lhe underlying assets and Oabllltles. The most up to date actuarial valuation was cCIITfed out os at 31 
March 2016. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to relied cwent condltions and rolled forward 
to the reporting date of the OaF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts os at 31 March 2019. 

h Assets and llablllllesln relation to retirement benefits ollh• Gal ren•Jon fund 
Rcconcihation of prc~L'nt voluc ol the scl1c:nc l1rtbihtlcs· Note 2018{19 2017118 

--~-- ·-- - -- £ E 

Balance os at 1 A I 209 000 I 516 000 
CUJTent ~&~Vlce cost - -
Interest cost 29.000 35.000 
Conlributions bv members - -
Remeasuremenl (gains) and los:s&: 

Actuarial gains/losses arising from chang!IS In flnanclal assumptions 15.000 14.()X) 
Actuarial oalns/loss!IS arlslno from demooraphlc chonaes - 9,()X) 
Actuarial gains/lassos arising on llablllfl!IS from eJ<Peflence 3.000 107.()X) 
Other (If appllcable) -

Past service costs/(gainsl -
lo$$es/(galr1$l on curtailments -
Uobnltles extinguished on settlements -
Net benefits paid 216.000 240.000 

' • . . . . ". ..... 
RcconciHotion of prc:;;cnt vn!UL' o' the se hcmL• c~scts· Noll• 2018/19 2017/18 

- -- -- ~ - -- £ £ 

Balance as at I AP!il I 513 000 
Interest Income 30.000 35.()X) i 

Contributions bv members -
Contribullons by employer -
Remeasurement gain/{105S) (22.000) (39.()X)j 
Assets distributed on settlements -
Net Benefits POk:l (216.0001 240.000 

.. . . . '· Ill .· .,, 
Analysis o! sch<:rrw m•cts end llablld"" • - • - - Nail.' 2018/19 2017/18 

£ £ 

Fair Value of Assets In nsion scheme 1.061,000 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 1,040.000 

"' 
Fund&d Pension Scheme Benefits- Gas Pension Fund Sensftlv!!y Anotvsls 

Dfscounl Rote Assvmpllon 

Ad]uslment to discount rete +0.1'% p .o. -0.1'% p.a. 
Present va ue of the total obligation 1.035.000 1,045,000 
'lr. chance In the present va_ue of the total oblloalon .().50% o_m 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment accounts assumption 

Adjustment to ~nslon Increase rate +0.1'% p.a. -0.1'% p .a. 
Present value of I he total obligation 1.045000 1.035.()X) 
% change In the present value of the tolal obligation 0.50% .om 

Post Rellrement Motlantv Assumption 

Adjustment to morlallly age rating assumption" -1yr +lyr 
Present value of the total obligation 1.113.000 969.()X) 
%change In the present value of the total ob (gallon 7.00% -6.M 

• A rating of+ 1 year means that members ore assumed to follow the mort a lily pattern o f tho base table above for on fndlvfduo 
that is I year older t. an I" at 

! 



~ - -- • -- - -- -- -- Note 2018119 - - 2017/18 "' . ~-
• • • ·---- ·-·· I -- • • NJ 

Government Bonds 
Cash 59.30'r. 

Total lOO,OO'r. 

Morlantv aiSumpl!or.s: 
Members aged 85 at accounting dale> Years Years 

Men 69 6.9 
Women 7.8 7.7 

Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 2.m 2.1~ 
Discount Rate 2.4~ 2.~ 

Gas Pension Fund 

The Gas Pension Fund Is maintained to provide for future pension payments to the beneliclotles. the objective being to maintain a 
fund sutfidenl to provide all future anticipated payments. No contributions ore currently being paid and there ore no secvlce 
member1 accruing further benefits. Membefs' benefits are guaranteed by statute. Should the Fund's assets not be suffident to 
provide alii he benefits. the residual fiabl!!ly for pension payments would loll on Bellost aty Council. 

The current morket value of the fund at 31 March 2019ls assessed by the Councils actuaries, Aon Hewltl and Is dlsclosed above. 
The Fund's financial Statements oulfined below do not take account olllobllllles to pay pensions end other benefits al1er 31 
March 2019. 

AI 31 Morch 2019 there were 25 pensioners lel11n the Gas Pensions Fund end the balances relating to the Gas Pension Fund or& 
fully consolidated In the Group finonclol statements. 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT ' • - - .. 31/DJ/2019 .l11CJ:~018 

INCOME: 
Investment Income 

EXPENDITURE 

Pensions Paid 
Administration Expenses 

SU!plus/(Dellcll) for the Year 

NET ASSET MOVEMENTS 
Brought forward balance at 01.0-4.2017 
Unreallsed gain at 01.04.2018 
Opening Value of fund 

Add Contribution from Oty Coundl 
Add SU!plus/(defldt) lot the year 
CHANGE IN MARKET VALUES OF INVESlMENTS 
Realised gain lot year 
Unreollsed gain/(loss) for year 

Closing valu~ of fund 

FINANCED BY: 
UK Index Unked Investments 
Cosh deposits and at bank 
Debtors 

Bank Balance 
Creditors 

£ £ 

9,7SJ 9.235 

(206.035] (234.757) 
(10,230] (5.699] 

!206,512! !231.221! 

1.106.441 1.337.519 
166,625 179.028 

1,273,066 1,516,547 

(206.512) (231.221) 

0 0 
(1,4611 (12.2601 

1,065 093 1.273,066 

431 .725 433. 182 
629,560 83607 ' 

3.808 3813 
1,065,093 1,273,066 

Closing_ value· ol fund • - _- · -~ 0~5_!1!~~-~ - - 1 273 01>6 

. . . . ; . I I I I: 

Northern Ireland local Government Ollicel's Pension Fund 144.114.942 134,948,942 
Gas Pension Fund 21.000 60.000 
Belfast Waterfront &. Ulster Hall Umlled (2.267,000 (2.059.000 

. .. • . . ;, . I. ... .. 
The figures above Include> a pension llobnlty In respect ot Belfast Waterfront&. Ulster Hell Umlled ( BWUH Lld). 8WUH Lld became a 
participating employer In the NILGOSC scheme on 1 AP1112016. Belfast Qty Coundl has agreed to Include end disclose the net 
llobnity under this scheme up to 31 March 2019 within the net liability total for Beolfast City CouncD. 

I 

115 
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Allowance for the Me Cloud Judgement and GMP Indexation I Equalisation 
The above amounts Include an estimated allowance tor additional llcblr.tles that ere now proboble arising from the Me Cloud 
Judgement end GMP Indexation and Equcnsctlon cases outlined below. 
The cddltlonolllablllfy Is shown as a Past Service Cast over the accounting period bosed on an effective dale ol31 March 2019. 

Me Cloud Judgement 
In December 2018 the Court of Appeal ruled In the 'Mc:CioudtSargeant' judgement that the transitional protection arrangements 
put In place when the Flreflghlers' end Judges' pension schemes were reformed were age discriminatory. The Government 
applied to the Supreme Court for permls.slon to appeal this Judgement, however the Supreme Court rejec:led the request on 27 
June2019. The next stage Is for the case to be referred to the Employment Tribunal to agree the remedy, following apprcprlcte 
consultation. 
While the judgement was not In relation to members with loco I Government Pension Scheme (NI) benefits If would be reason ab e 
to assume that the Government wm now seek remedy for oil public sector schemes. Including Local Government Pension Scheme 
(NI). 
The cddillonolllcbllity was colc:utoted to be 3~ of the Councll's active flabllltles using o salary Increase ossumption of 1.5,. 
above CPIInflallon (as used for employellln the Northern Ireland Local Government Officer's Pension Fund). and less than 0. 1'1:. of 
the active liabilities where salaries were assumed to Increase In Una with CPIInflatlon. 
GMP Indexation and Equalisation 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Is a portion of panslon that Is payable to membell who were contracted cut of the Stale 
Second Penslcn and accrued benefits In the scheme between 6 April1978 and 5 April 1997. The LGPS (N 11 was c:onlrocled out. 
The GMP was Intended to approximately replace the State Pension which members were giving up, however the payment terms 
of GMP are diflerent between men end women. which was a consequence of the stale pension Itself being unequal at that lime. 
On 26 October2018 the High Court ruled In the Uoyds Bank case that equalisation for the effect of unequal GMPs Is required. 
The estimated llcbllify has been based on a typical Local Government pension fund to quantify the value of fully Indexing GMP's 
in llnewlth CPIInllclion for thoserecchlng Stale Pension Age after 5 December2018. Thlswcscclculcted to be 0.3,. of the 
liabilities I defined benefit obligation. 

Donated A>1L'h Account No le 2018/19 -- 2017/18 

-- -- - - .. -- ---- -- -- - -- -- - -· -- -· -- - - £ -- . - £ 
0 nl balance 10001 10001 
Add: new donated assets received (condition of use not 
met) 430.000 -
Less: cmounls released to the District Fund -
Comprehensive Income end Expenditure Account [10,000) -

- .. --- -- --- . - - 430001 - --- 10,001 

Analysis of Donated Assols Account 

The balance of the Donated Assets Account repre5enls donations received that have yet to be recognised as Income, as they 
have condilfans attached to them. which wnl require the donated assets to be returned, If conditions ore not met. The balances 
of the year end ore as follows: 

- - - - -

Donated A><cls Accounl Nok• 2018/19 2017/18 
£ -· £ 

Animal Welfare Van 10.000 
Councillor Samuel Tu in Mercer Portrcll 
Nell Shcwc:ross "Writers of Bello.~!" collection 430.000 

- --------------------------------- --- 430.001 '"=- 10001 

- - - -

Copllal R"'' "ipls Unoppll"d Note 2018/19 - 2017/IB 
£ -- - _ E 

rents received rn advance condition of use not met 250.000 
0 

------------------~---------------116.!!;2 -~~,~cOO 

lhe amount of £2501cln ccpllalrecelplsuncpplled relates to the proceeds from a disposal to the NIHE ot whlch£133~ has been 
used to finance a ploygrcund. 
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---- -- - - -- ------ - - - -

No!l' 2018/19 2017/18 .copllol Gmnh Rccei~cd In Advoncc 

---~------ - £ - £ 
0 en1n balance 997132 623 323 

Add: new capitol QTOnls received In advance lcondltlon of use oot met) - 437,058 I 

Less: amounts released to the Comprehen~ve Income and Expenditure 
Statement other projects 152.829) 
Less: amounts released to the Comprehensive Income and ExpendittJte 
Statement [42.432) (63.249 

--- - ----~-~----. ~------_--I'C· .2]:-·~9"1.131" 

Analysts of Capitol Grants Receipts In Advance Balance 

The balance of Capital Grcmts Receipts In Advance represents grants received that hove yet to be recognised as Income, as they 
have condltlons attached la them. which will require the grant to be repaid, If conditions ore not met. The balances at the yeor 
end are as follows: 

CC~)itOI GfoniSR;)Cerp!slrJ Ai!,-:-o ... c:e t,~~~~ 2018/19 2017!18 
£ £ ' - - - - - --

Whlteroc:k Communi Garden Allotments 483 
BSC 7 Alteygates Lenadoon . 5.705 
BSC Allevgates Dlvis 499 10.147 
BSC Bikes Lower Oldparl: 6.700 14.127 
BSC Bikes lower Falls 9.744 24.416 
BSC Bikes lower Shanklll 9.859 17.286 
BSC 26 Allevgates Lenadoon 769 10.417 
Usnasharragh leisure Centre 500.000 500.000 
Sprlnglleld Dam 373.817 414.551 

., : .. 
Contlngcnelcs - --- -- ·- · - -- - -· 

Residential Waste Treatment ProJect 

The orc21 Joint Committee has. with the approval of their Parlldponl Councils. entered Into a Cont'ngent Uabnlty Undertaking 
with the bidding consorilum In the proc:urement for the RMdentlot Waste Treatment Project. Payments modo, If any, In 
accordance with !his ~ ndertaking will be f~nded by the Par11dpant Coundls. 

Landffil Site 

The financial provision for the capping and annual monitoring cost of the landtnl site, requi'ed to meet the Counal's 
e nvlrcnmental obligations under the NIEA licence, has been agreed on a Loco Authority Deed and disclosed In Note t8. The 
ramoln1ng area nol covered by NI EA licence may roqulre spedflc: capping depending on the future use of this lond. The Impact 
o f any future capping of this area on the liabilities of Bolfost City Council Is uncertain and therefore no provision for ony such c osts 
has been made. 

I 
I 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the flnanclol Statements 
FOR THE YI:AR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

-- - ----- --- -- -- -- --

24 Othe-r cash flow'dlsclosures-' -- --~--- - - - ~ - - ------.--~ ~~-=...~ 

0 Analysis of Adjusfments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services _. _ _ -

Adjustment lo surplus or deficit on the provision of services -
.. . - - -- ~- ------2016/19-~~2017/18 

for noncash movemenls • ---a----·------·-•-·----Notes _______________ (Restated) 
£ £ 

DepreciaTion 11 18,313.014 16.626.647 
Impairment & downward revalualions (B. non-sole 
derecognitions) ll (6,312.957) 3.291.888 
Amortisation (included with depreciation above) - -
(lncrease)/Decreose in inventories 49.874 (30.449) 
(Jncreose)/Decrease in Debtors 1.345.562 4.517.259 
lncrease/(decrease) in impairment provision for bad debts (170.658) 36.777 
lncrease/(Decreose) in Creditors 4,911.557 ( 1.841.256) 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Interest Creditors - -
Payments to NILGOSC 20 24.489.000 10.071.000 
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold Ba. 11e 350,000 8,612.078 
AIC/WIP written off to Net Cost of Services - . 
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 3,572,747 1.684.026 

Movement in value of investment properties-included 
above in Impairment & downward revaluafions (&non-sale 
derecognitions) - . 
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 21 (10,000) -
Contract Costs - -
Contract Assets - -
Contract Uabilities - -
Deferred revenue - -
,_. ~ ----------- -- - --- - - - -- --- - ---------,-.---46.538,139 ___ 42.967.970 ' 

Adjust for items Inclu-ded in the net surplus or deficit on the 
--- - --- --- ------------- --- - ........ .. 

provision of services.that.are investing and financing -- ___ -----~ot~s _____________ 20~ 

£ £ 

Purchase of short-lerm (not considered to be cash 
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes 
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) 89.928 276,792 

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cosh 
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes 
investments in associates. joint ventures and subsidiaries) - -
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E. invesTment property and 
intangible assets (430.080) (3.445.146) 
Capital grants included in 'Taxation & non-specific-grant 
inc ome" (3,052,865) (2,541 ,2281 

- - - -- ·- . - . - . - - - - :-p 39J..Ol7J--rs) o<t:saz: 

98 



b 

d 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement. cash and cosh equivalents inc'ude cash on hand and in bank and short 
term depos"ts and investments (cons'dered to be cosh equivalents). net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cosh 
equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows con be reconciled to the related 
items in the Balance Sheet as follows: 

-
- -- ---- -·- ......... ~ ------ -----. -- - ----~~-~ ~- -- ~~=------· -:=-=:-__ ....:._ 2018/19_-=~ -- - -

£ £ 

Cash and Bank balances 6,574.416 1.918.212 

Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 17,000.000 8,500,000 

Short Term Investments (considered to be Cosh Equivalents) - -
Bank Overdraft - -

-- ---------------- -- ------------------------ -- -· 23,574;416' --- 10,418.212-

There is currently a balance of £1.806,778 held within an escrow bank account with the BIG lottery Fund in relation to the 
funding of the Connswater Greenwoy project. Th;s balance is Intended for future use within this wider project and 
funding wil be drown down accordingly. Th's ba'ance Is not Included In the above total. 

- --- - -- --- - - ---- - ---

Cash flows from Investing Activities __________ -- ·-------· --------2()1_!3/19 ___ ___1Q_!?/T8 
£ £ 

Purchase of PP&E. investment property and intangible assets 39,773,615 21.019,574 
Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considered to be 
cash equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Investments 89,928 276.792 
Other Payments for Investing Activities 1.733,342 1.682.860 

Proceeds from the sole of PP&E, investment property and 
intangible assets (430,080) (3.445,146) 

Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be 
cash equivalents) - -
Proceeds from Long Term Investments - -
Capital Grants and Contributions Received (3,052,865) (2.541 .228) 
Other Receipts from lnvesfil}g Activities - -
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 38.113,940 16 992 852 

I 
I 
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e Cash llows_fr_<?m _Fin_(]ncing-Aclivilies _•, _. _ ..._ - _ '- - _ ~ _ .. _ _:--:-~~--=-2016/19~- T--~~lZ/16 
£ £ 

Cash Receipts from Short and long Term Borrowing 65,000,000 5.000.000 
Other Receipts from Financing Activities - -
Cosh payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a finance lease 
and on-Balance Sheet PFI contracts 

. -
Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing (38.87 4.042) (4,844.736) 
Other payments for Financing Activities - -
Ne( cosh flows from. Finan-CingAC:tivifies -,~.-:-:---~-;-~.~~ ··:;-_-~ --- ····· ·· ··-----~~-- . - 26,125.958 ·~---z,-~ ' 155,264'i 

UsobleReserves ... --- ·------------ ··- - -- -·.. -- - ·T- ·---.·~ 

a Copftol Receipts Reserve . . . _ . . . . .: 

b 

These are capitol receipts which hove or'ginoted primarily from the sa e of assets which have not yet been used to 
finance capital expenditure. 

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset soles and other monies defined by statute as 
capital receipts. These are originally cred'ted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capitol Receipts Reserve. The 
reserve is written down when resources ore applied to finance new capitol expenditure or set aside to reduce an 
author'ty's capitol financing requirement [or used for other purposes permitted by statute). 

Capital Receipts Reserve_:.:_ _ .. -----------~-----=-----=:__N_2i_E;s~- ·_-_:::_ • ~1/03/,;!01_!' _ _.-_ :_31~03/20_18 
£ £ 

At 1 April 4,739.457 1.632.457 
Movement 
Tro nsfers between statuto!)' & other reserves & the General 
Fund - -

i 

I 

Disoosa l of Non Current Assets/ Caoilat Soles Be 400.000 3,107,000 I 

Capitol Receipts used to finance capitol expenditure - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income 
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs 
colcufated in accordance with statutory requirements . (26.1 60) 

I other '" '"'"'"'"1• 61,000 26.160 
- - -

At 31 March · · - -- --- . -- -~--- --~------- ---~-----5. 200.457 .. - 4 . 739. :15~- 1 

CapitaiGrants UnappliedAccount --- ·--- . · ~- ·-·:-:--- ·- ------ -----_ ~--;·-:---: ---·"-. :-~ ....... li-1 1 

Where a capital grant or contribution (or port thereof) has been recognised os income in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribulion has not been incurred at 
the Balance Sheet dote. the grant or contribution sha~ be transferred to the Cap·tol Grants Unapplied Account (within 
the usable reserves section of the be once sheet). reflecting its status os o copltol resource avai ab e to finance 
expenditure. This transfers reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

When. at a future dale, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is incurred, the grant or 
contribution (or port thereof) shall be transferred from the Capitol Grants Unapp'ied Account to the Capitol Adjustment 
Account reflecting the opplicofon of capita resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the 
Movement in Reserves statement or ·n the notes to the accounts. 

S:.9Plt_9 1_~r:_gi)Js_IJ.r!9P.P.Il~do~_<:_q_~l -~--- -~-- --"-- =-~·--- -~- ·_-__ - -~::--:- l~C.t~.. -- 3_!lQ~/2019~31/03/20~ 
£ £ 

At 1 April - -
Movement 
Unapplied Capitol Grants received in year - -
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in veer - -
At31 'Morch~~ 



c Capitol Fund - ----------~ -- --· -·-· ----- -.-. ·•· ·- · --.··-:-;-----;--' ,-,-. -."':.-1.'1 
..... . ,--=-- • ' -"'·· -. - . -.: --t.. 1 ... ~. --::::.!:J.Aita'./~· ..l'.· 

This fund is authorised under Section 9 of Part 1 of the local Government Finance Act (Nothem Ireland) 2011 . 

_Capitol Fund,.........::"~t:·~~---:::-::''=-..-.!:':~-:-..--~~- ~ -_:-:- Not~s .. =:-=~~_l/_Op~_Q_19~1/03/2018 
£ £1 

At 1 April 25.669.445 24.567,205 

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 4b (247.604) 1.514.399 

Financing from CCIF (43,762) [l35.367) 
Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA to finance Capilal 
Expenditure 12 (89.928) (276,792) 

AI31'Mafch-- ·;::_:-~·- --_-:-:~-m-~;;~~-.-;-, ~: _. ~ :.-j ~.:.. - :--:::- --_ _.- ··- -_- ~-.--.-:-- 2s.2sB.15C:$~·2s;669 :445 .1 

£ £ 
Local Investment Fund 1.425,280 2.301.028 
Belfast Investment Fund 5,559,723 4,080.715 
City Centre Investment Fund 15.154.012 15.287,702 
Social Outcomes Fund 3.149.136 4,000,000 
Total 25,288,151 25,669,445 

The movement and purpose of these funds 1s outhned below: 

- - - -- -- - - -- -- - -- --- -

local Jnveslmenl Fund - 31/03/2019 31/03/2018 

---- ----- ------- ---- --- - --- -------------------- --- £ - - - £ 

Local Investment Fund (LIF) is a key port of the Investment Programme that provides funding for smaller initiatives 
focusing on physical work on buildings or facilities within communities. The balance on this fund as at 31 March 2019 is 
£1,425,280. 

Belfast Investment Fund - - 31/03/2019 -- -- 31/03/2018 
£ £ ------- . . , -- --- . -- . -.- . - ... --------·- -- --- ---- - - -- - -

Opening balance 4.080.715 3.810.715 
Add: new contributions to fund 4b 3,270.000 3,270.000 
Less: financing drawn down from fund 4b (1 ,790,992) 
Less: transfer to Social Outcomes fund (3.000,000) 
AI 31 March·- - - --- - -- _., __ 

---~ --- --- ---
---~-=~~-:-:: ·---~- =~5,559.723 :._:.;.. __ 4.080,715 - .. . - ·- ... ~-- -- - - --- . 

There is o balance of £5.559,723 on the Be fast Investment Fund at year end 31 March 2019. This fund was established to 
support partnership pro;ects across the City. 
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City-CentrelnvestmentFuncr--~-:--~----. -- --~ --. ·----31/03/2019~..-~31/03/2018 

'-- --- -- ~- ___.t:__~-~:-=~--~~------.L...--.- - - --- .... -- ---:~~·-~-~~ £ ~::~.'3~~.:_-.~-£ 
702 15 

City Centre Investment Fund (CCIFJ is o fund to support the Be fast City Centre Regeneration Investment Plans. The 
proposed Investment principles for the CCIF ore as fol 'ows: 

-the project should make o signifcont impact on the City Centre economy in terms of "gross value added" and job 
creation 
- the project should make posifve and net contribution to the business rates income received by Belfast City Council 

During the year Belfast City Council used this fund to support ongoing and potential City Centre regeneration projects. 
The bo once on CC IF at year end 31 March 20 l 9 is £15,1 54,012. 

- --- --

Social Outcomes Fund - - _.:;;;:::: -------;;:-::__ ---· ------ - -... --- - -- --- -·--- ' 31/03/2019-:"'- 31/Q3/2~1~ 

. - --- - -- - -------- .... -- - - ----- - -- - - - - - - ---- ____ £ _ _:_ --'-- --- £ 
Opening balance 4.000.000 1.000.000 
Add: transfer from Belfast Investment fund 3.000.000 
Less: amounts drown down from fund 4b (850.8641 -

Soc'al Outcomes Fund is set up to support City Centre projecls which might not generate o direct financial retum but 
which would enhance the overall City Centre offer and support the attraction of investment into the City Centre. The 
balance on th's fund as at 31 March 2019 is £3.149.136. 

This fund is authorised under Section 9 of Part 1 of the Loco' Government Finance Act (Nothem Ireland] 2011. 

l eisure Mobilisation Fund ~--~·.:.-~ .. = · - · -- . _ _ - ... _____ ~ ___ _ __ Notes __ ____ .:.._ _-=._ __ 31 /03/2019_::_-: 31/03/2018 
£ £ 

AI 1 April 1.704,334 1.945.000 
Transfer; between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 4b (262.6321 (240.6661 

Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance 
Capital Expenditure 12 - -
At31 March--·-·1~441:7fJ2:-:::=i1 :7o4'334~ 

The Leisure Mobii'sation Fund's a fund to support the Leisure Transformation Programme. This fund will cover programme 
level costs including communications. engagements and procurement costs. 
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: .. 
OtherBalililCeS&' Reserv_e_s~_:·.=--"-... ·~¥:lr~~= -=:Notes~~31/03i~OlJAi'!!3_1 ~03/2018 

£ £ 
At 1 April 867.527 640.929 

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 4b 160,688 156,401 
Transfer to BWUH Subvention Fund 153.029 169,638 
Transfer to BWUH Subvention Fund (117.325) [99.441) 

- - - --

At31 Mt:JrCh~--~:::._-:_·;·- :~-=:·:·:·-::-'·- .~- --._ -- - ·~ -~~1 : 063,919 .. ;;..1\ .... ~. 867,527 

£ £ 
Election Fund 674.607 513.919 
BWUH Subvention Fund 322,667 169,638 
BWUH Sinking Fund 66,645 183,970 
Total 1,063,919 867,527 

The movement and purpose of these funds is outlined below: 

This reserve is used to equalise ( smooth I the cost of elections by build'ng up a fund to cover the costs of future erec tions 
by making contributions. as and when required. to the reverse. 

BWUHSubvenlionFund·--=---=-- -=-= ~=-- .::::- • -··- -···- ------· ·-···-·--31/03/2019 ~"'"': 31/03/2018 

.. --·· __ , ______ , _______ - . . - -- - -- £ -- ..•. .:.._ . £ 

BWUH Subvention Fund was established to support notional and intemational corporate organisations in bringing the'r 
conferences to Belfast. 

BWUH Sinking Fund - -· ------ -·- ·- -- -·- --- -- --· -- - -·-- - --~- 31/03/2019 - - 31/03/2018 
- . .. - ___ . .:. __ . - --- - ---~ ~ _,::_ __ · . £ ._ -·· .: . ~; £. 
Open1ng balance 
Add: new contributions to fund I I 
Less: amounts drawn down from fund I I 

183970 

[1 17,325) 

283 411 
57.242 

(156.683) 
n:K .. "I: I 

BWUH Sink'ng Fund is a fund to support planned maintenance and future capital works of the new exhibition centre at 
Waterfront Hal . 
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- - . 
This reserve shows the accounting cast in the year of providing services ·n accordance w'th generally accepted 
accounting practices. rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure 
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position ·s shown in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

- -,. .__.. ... ·---------·· -- - , - - - - -- - -
~018/19 2017/16 

General fund_·~- .. -- -- - --- - - : -- - Notes -- ~ .... ..:. ___ ~ ~- ___ (Restoted) 
£ £ 

At I April 24.408.596 20,989,452 
Prior vear adjustment 
Aoolied Caoilol Grants 10.12 (3.052.865) (2.541.228) 
Unapplied Capital Grants received in vear - -
Direct Revenue Financina 4.12 (9.239,567) (5,518. 199) 
Depreciation and lmoairment odiustment 4 12.000,057 19,918,535 
Statutory Provision for financino Capital Investment 4 (5,874.116) (5,876.183) 
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 

4, ' 2 - -
Surolus/IDeficitl on the Provision of Services CIES (18,000.936) (17,319,854) 
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the 
General Fund 4 349.548 (1.430,134) 
Net movements on Pension Reserve 4.20 24.489.000 10.071.000 
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capitol Soles 3. 4. 11. 23 (80.080) 5.166.932 
Difference between finance and other costs and income 
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 71.299 213,542 
Other Movements 726.052 734,733 

- - - - --

At 31 Morch- --· - -- - . - - -· -- -- - -------25,796,988-.-_-24,408,596 . - . -

This fund represents the surp us of income over expenditure. If can be used to supplement income and unexpected 
expenditure in future years. Of the £25,797k, £12,957k relates to expenditure committed at the year end (17/1 8 £24.408k, 
£10,738k committed). 
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26 
a 

Unuseabl~ Res~!v~s~ -_-- - -· -------.---~--- · - ---- ·--------·-:- --..,.--- ---~ ~ 

Capital Adjustment Account . l , ..•. , . _ . . ___ , (. _ ' . . · • _ .• i 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the d'fferent arrangements for accounfng 
for the consumpt'on of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construcron or enhancement of those assets under 
statutory provisions. 

The Account is debited with the cost of acquis"tion, construction or enhancement as depreciation. impairment losses 
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. with reconcil"ng postings 
from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fa'r va ue figures to an historic cost basis. 

The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as fnance for the costs of acquisition, construction 
and subsequent costs. 

The Account contains accumulated gains and 'asses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated assets 
that have yet to be consumed by the Council. 

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the 
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such ga·ns. 

~ 
.. .. - -- --- - --- - ----- - - ... - .. -2018/19 -_-, -- 2017!18 

Capitol Adjustment.~c-~ou~t __ ____ -·. . - - . .. Notes . . -· (Restated] 
£ £ 

AI I April 460,487,377 470,929,509 
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 3,052,865 2,541,228 
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year -

- I 
Direct Revenue Financing 4. 12 9.239.567 5.518.199 1 

Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 11 ( 12,000,057) (19,9 18.535) 
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4, 12 5.874,116 5.876.183 
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 4. 12 - -
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 4. 11 (350.000) (8,61 2,078) 
Capitol Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 4, 12 - -
Other Movements 4,565.457 3,876,079 
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & 
CAA to finance capital expenditure l2 89,928 276,792 

-- - - -

AI 3l'Ma-rch- -. - -. --. . 
--~ . .470,959,253 _ .. _460.467.377.' 
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b Revaluation Reserve · · - · - -· -- -- -- --- -· 

e 

The Revaluafon Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant 
and Equipment and lnfang"ble Assets. The reserve ts reduced when assets w"th accumulated gains are: 

- revalued downwards or Impaired and the ga'ns ore last 
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreclation, or 
-disposed of and the gains are rea·ised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the dale the reserve was created. 
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into fhe balance an the Capital Adjustment Account. 

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation [upwards or downwards) of 'ndividual 
assets. All such revaluotions [excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/[Deficit) on the Provision of 
Services are m:rrored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expend'ture. t is a fundamental principle of this account 
that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current va ue when derecognlsed, the balance he'd on the 
Revaluation Reserve Is written off to the Capitol Ad;ustment Account. 

- - --- - -- -------- ---- - -- - - - -

Revaluation Reserve Notes 2018/19 2017/18 
- - - - - ---- -----. -- - - - ----

£ £ 
At I April 159,528.493 138.508.289 
Revaluation & Impairment 11 9,648.471 24.906.284 
Movements from associates & joint ventures -
Other Movements (4.565.457) (3.886.080) 

At31 March 164,611,507 159 528,493 

Pension Reserve 

Pension Reserve Notes 2018/19 2017/16 - - - - - - - -
£ £ 

At l April (136,947.942) ( 125.832.942) 
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,20 (24,489,000) ( 1 0,071 ,000) 
Revaluation & Impairment 20 15,323,000 ( 1.0 14.000) 
Gas pension & BWUH movement (247,000) (30,000) 

At31 March 
- . - -

{ 146,360, 942) -- (136,947,942) 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences aris"ng from the different arrangements for accounting for post­
employment benefits and for funding benefits in occardonce w:th statutory prov:sions. The Council accouns for post­
employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement as benefits are earned by employees 
accruing years of service. updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation. changing assumptions and investment 
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs 

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed os the Council mol>es employer's contribufons 
to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsib·e. The debit balance on the Pens1ons 
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by post and current employees and the resources 
the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set as' de by 
the time the benefits come to be paid. 
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e 

Accumulaled Absenc-es Account - -- - - -

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund balance 
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave entitlement carried 
forward at the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements ore expected to require that the impact on the General 
Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account 

Accumulated Absences Account . ~ . - ·-- -- Notes 31/03/2019 31 /1?3/~9_1 _8 -
£ £ 

At 1 April ( 1.344.2301 (1.374,8351 
Difference between finance and other costs and income 
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements IJ3,595I 30,605 

At3fMarch ___ -- --- ~- ~ - ---- -- - (1.357,825) --- {1 .344 230) 

Provisions Discount Role Reserve 

The Provisions Discount Role Reserve covers the arrangement. put in place by the Department under its amendment to 
the 2017/18 accounts direction (see DfC circular LG 05/20181. to accommodate changes in the current value of the 
annual calculation of long term provisions for londf.ll costs. which arises os a result of changes to the interest rotes used 
to discount these provisions and landfll cash flows being Increased for inflation. 

Provisions Discount Role Reserve Notes 31/03/2019 31/03/2018 - - - - --
£ £ 

At 1 April (217.987] -
Difference between finance and other costs and income 
calculated on on accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (57,704] (217,9871 
Other Movements 12.532 -

---- -- -- -- ---- - -~ - - - --
AI 31 March (263.159} (217.987} 
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29 

SignllicontTradfngOperafions~~- ~--- -.-_----~~~ 

The Council considers a trading operation exists where the serv;ce if provides is competitive i.e the user always has the 
choice to use an alfema!ive supplier to the Council and the Council charges the user on a basis other than a 
straightforward recharge of the Council's costs in supplying the service. The Council uses a variety of chorg·ng 
mechanisms such os quoted lump sums. fixed periodical charges or rotes, or a combination of these. 

In deciding whether a trading operation is significant the Council lakes both financial and non-financ'al criteria into 
account. 

Fnancial criteria token into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are: 

-the magnitude of each individual trading operation's tumover when compared with the Council's net revenue budget 

-the risk of financial loss the Council may be exposed to in providing the service to the user. 

Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations ore significant to the Council ore: 

- the importance of each individual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets and 
improving performance. 

- the exposure of the Council to service reputotional loss risk by providing the service 

-whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stokeholders and their needs. 

In applying the aforementioned criteria, the Council considers the letting of industrial estates to be a signifcant trading 
operation. The Income and expenditure associated with these industrial estates is disclosed below; 

Industrial_ Estate Lelfings_ _ _ _ _ _ _2018/19 ~--2017!16 ' 

These significant trading operations fonm port of Note 9e to these fnanciol statements. 

Agency Services · • · - -- - - - - - - · · ' 

The Council provides administrafon services to Belfast One BID Ltd. Destination CQ BID Ltd and Belfast Central Business 
District. These entities pay an administration fee to the Council for these services. This fee amounted to £30,059 across the 
3 entities (2017/18 £13k). 

Joint Arrangements - · 

During 2018/19 Be fast City Counc~ made a fnancial contribution of £89.928 (17/18 £276,792) to BeltelllP re a ling to the 
redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Bu'lding. 

This contribution to LLP is included in the Long tenm Assets of Belfast City Councl This represents 46% of the net assets of 
the LLP which is included in Belfast City Councirs consolidated balance sheet. 

;--~~-- --·- -~-----·-- f --~------. --~·- ··----~~ 2018/19,-~-----2017/16 

;_ -· - ·- -----------------' _____ ___: _____ __ £ , _________ ____ --·--- ... £ 
long term assets 3.231.429 3,058,283 
Current assets 242.435 188.179 
Current liabilities (37.005) 100.469 
long term liabilities . -
Net Assets 3,436,859 3,346,931 

On 1 April2016, the operations of Waterfront Hall and Ulster liall were transferred to a company BWUH um;ted. Beffost 
City Cound hod the entire shore capita of th"s company, l ord'nary shore at £1 each. Belfast City Counci. entered into 
an agreement with BWUH limited under which the Council pays the company a management fee for the operation of 
Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hol'. Payments to and from the company are ouKned in Note 30 f. 
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30 RelatedPartyTransaclions -----:- -----~·· _.--:--~.-:--- • · .. --- = -- .. - . - - --_---.-::,-.:.--- . 

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price 
is charged. Related Party Transaction exclude transactions with any other en fly that is a related party solely because of 
its economic dependence on the Counc·l or the Government of which it forms port. A related party is one that has the 
ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operaling 
decisions. This includes cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control but 
excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade Unions in the course of 
their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relafonship with the Council and the entity is solely that of 
an Agency (see note 28) these are not deemed to be Related Party Transactions. 

As part of their duties, Councillors ore appointed to represent the Council in a range of other orgonsisations and further 
details of these arrangements con be found on the Councils website. 

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below. 

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. In the 2018/19 financial year the 
Council commissioned £3,019,697 (20 17/18 £2.412.431 J of works and services from Visit Belfast in which Councillors have 
on interest. The Council entered into these contracts in full camp ionce with the Council's standing orders and codes of 
conduct. 

The Council also paid grants of £1.403,026 [2017/18 £1.066.516) to a number of organisations in which Councillors and 
Council officers had an interest. These grants were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests. 

During 2018/19 the Council had expenditure of £531.913 (2017/18 £263,533) with other Councils and income received of 
£1,508,972 [2017/18 £980,249) from other Councils. of which £58.122 (2017!18 £159,488) was outstanding at 31 March 
2019. These amounts mainly related to services provided. 

The Council also borrowed £30m from other Local Authorities within the UK. These loans were fully repaid by 31 March 
2019. 

a Other Organisations 

- - - --

Resloted 

--·--- - Councillors - - 2018/19 . 2017/18 
£ £ 

Association of Port Health Authorities 1 222 1.248 
Belfast City Centre Management Board 2 238.260 259,842 
Belfast Harbour Commissioners 3 36,369 87.892 
Belfast Hills P'ship 1 36.900 37.601 
Board of Ulster Orchestra Society Ltd I 319,253 308.363 
Cathedral Quarter Trust 2 396,989 62.380 
Concorde Community Centre Committee 2 240 600 
Donegall Pass Community Centre Committee 3 600 0 
Duncairn Community Centre Committee 4 0 600 
Finoghy Community Centre Committee 2 0 600 
Grand Opera House Trust 1 35.000 35.000 
Greater Shonkill Partnership Board 4 49.414 34,096 
Highfield Community Centre Committee 2 0 600 
knocknaoonev Community Centre Committee 5 1.420 2.329 
Lagon Volley Regional Pork Advisorv Committee 2 0 2.3601 
Liaoniel CommunitY Centre Committee 1 0 600 
Linenholllibrorv Board 1 35,835 35,357 1 
Local Strategic Partnership on Travellers Issues 2 1.000 0 

Lyric Theatre Education Advisorv Panel 2 150,978 100.000 
Morton Community Centre Committee 4 0 600 
National Association of Councillors 6 3.560 3,560 
NI Amenity Council 1 4,660 0 
NI Local Government Association 9 90.434 91.088 
Somme Advisorv Council 3 1,894 1.200 
Visit Belfast 4 3.019.697 2.412.431 
Woodvale Community Centre Committee 2 0 600 

At 31' Morch-::::_~ -~:-:-.:-:~ ~-- ~ - :. - -.- - - ---·-- -- - --- ---.- . -:· ... ~4 '4~2. 723 -=- 3;476,947 



b Payments to Community Groups 
Belfast City Council mode payments to the follow·ng Community Groups that hove Councillors os port of their 
committee structure; 

~ --=-=-~ --::;:: ____ ,.. ___ ._,_., ____________ ~ - -~councillorc::-:-.:-=_-_-:iolB/19-=-_~~0T7/ls ..... .. ----·- -. -·. - -- - - - -- - -
£ £ 

East Belfast Partnership Board 8 20,500 32,500 
South Belfast Partnership Board 5 20,220 32,937 
West Belfast Partnership Board 7 8,784 3,872 

-- ----- - - ---
_49,504 69,309 

c Joint CommiHees 
Belfast City Council mode payments to the following Joint Committees; 

~ -.._..---~~ -·=2018/19" --_- 2017/18 

7.517,58! 1 7.989.3~ 
- ------------ .. ~- -

- - -·A •- - - • --- --·- - ------

The origins of orc21 can be traced back to June 1999, when o small number of Council representarves agreed that o 
joint approach was the best way to del;ver on effective waste management strategy for the reg·on. By 2000. 11 Councils 
had joined together from the eostem Reg·on Waste Management Group. which was eventually renamed arc21. 

d Active Belfast Llmlted 
Belfast City Council with Active Belfast Limited entered into an agreement with Gll for the prov·sion of le: sure serv;ces. 
These financial state ments include expenses of £7,269,390 (2017/18 £8,606,329) for the provis"on of these serv'c es Tn the 
year ended 31 March 2019. 

e Car Loans to Council Officers 
The Council makes cor loans available to employees who ore designated essential car users. The total amount 
outstanding in respect of cor loons to designated employees os at 31 March 2019 was £ 116.1 07 (20 17/18 £ 1' 7 ,698). 

Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Limited 
With effect from 1 April 201 6 the Council transferred the operations of Belfast Waterfront Holi and U ster Ho l to a new 
company BWUH Limited with the Council being the sole shareholder in this new company. During 2018/19 the Council 
invoiced BWUH Lld for £2.189,993 for expenditure incurred on it's behalf and also received :nvoices from the Company 
tor £3.359,644 mainly for the management fee. At 31 March 201 9,£182,811 was owed to the company by the Councl 
and £132.142 receivable from the company. 

g Beltel LLP 
During 2018/19. Belfast City Council made a financial contribution of £89.928 (17 /18 £276.792) to Belle~ llP relating to the 
redevelopme nt of the Belfast Telegraph Building (os outlined in Note 29). The Council is re presented by two officers on 
the Management Board of the llP and Timec 1523 Limited is also represented by two members on the Management 
Board. 
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31 Prlor~Yecr Re-:-stclemenr ----::-:--.- · · · -- ·- ·. -·- ··;- - - · -- ~ • -- - . ·· · --

Community assets are assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life. and 
which may, in addition. have restrictions on their disposal. The Council includes in this class of assets such properties as 
allotments and community gardens. cemeteries. some monuments, open ground spaces. parks and playgrounds. These 
comprise substantial areas within the Council area and form a significant amenity value to the life of the local 
community. 

In financial years up to and including the financial year 2017-18, which ended on 31 March 2018, the council's 
accounting policy for the recognition and measurement of community assets was at a nominal value of£ 1 per asset, 
under the valuation option contained in the "Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom" 
(the Code). The effect of this policy was that any capital expenditure on community assets was not reflected in their 
carrying value. 

During the course of financial year 201 8-19. the Council reviewed ils accoun ling policy for community assets and so 
adopted the historic cost option. where applicable. for the recognition and measurement of community assets as set 
out in the Code. This was to present more clearly to users of the Council's financial statements the amount of resources 
invested by the Council in its community assets. 

The revised accounting policy on community assets is intended to take effect from the earliest presented balance sheet 
contained in the 2018-19 financial statements. Thus. from 1 April 2017, community assets will be recognised. measured 
and accounted for at their depreciated historic cost. Community assets that consist of land or that have on 
indeterminate useful life will not be depreciated but will be subject to annual review for impairment. Community assets 
that ore deprecioble and have a determinable useful life will be depreciated systematically at a constant (straight line) 
rote over their useful Jives. os well as being subject to impairment review if there is evidence of excessive deterioration or 
that their value to the Council is below their then carrying value. Depreciation will be charged on on annual basis to the 
relevant service of the Council that controls the community asset, and so will form part of the annual depreciation 
charge to the CIES for that service. 

Due to the difficulty in determining a reliable estimate of the useful lives of these assets. the Council has decided on a 
pragmatic approach to re-life deprecioble assets os at the commencement of the new policy from 1 Apr'l 2017, unm 
these assets fall to be included in the annual property asset inspection cycle os port of the councils property vo1uat'on 
approach. Community assets with depreciable components will be re·lifed from 1 April2017 as follows: 10 years for 
playgrounds, 30 years for infrastructure assets; an appropriate period for other deprec'able assets dependent on 
individual characteristics. 

The Code states that "historical cost is deemed to be carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 or at the dale of 
acquisition. whichever dote is the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation at impairment (if applicable)". The 
amount of capitol expenditure on community assets that was previously written off to the CIES but has now been 
reinstated to the historic cost of these assets is £44.8 million. being the sum of: (a) capitol expenditure on community 
assets recognised between when the Code came into operation on 1 Apri12007 and 31 March 2017; plus (b) the historic 
cost of assets transferred to Belfast City Council from other local authorities on 1 April2015 os port of Local Government 
Reorganisation. 
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The Balance Sheet values of community assets os recognised and measured at their restated depreciated historic cost 
values are presented below as at 1 April 2017 and 31 March 201 B. along with the impact that these restated values 
would have had on the CIES. 

COST OR VALUATION 

Carrying value of community assets as at 31 March 2017 as previously reported 

Write back cumulative capital expenditure 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2017 

Carrying value of community assets as at 31 March 2017 restated 

Add: additions for the year and transfers in from work rn progress 

Add: assets reclassiFed to commun'ly assets from other asset classes 

less: asset transferred from community assets to other asset class 

Less: assets derecognised during the year 

less: write out revaluation reserve on assets transferred from operational assets held at 
current valuation to community assets held at historic cost 

Gross book value of community assets as at 31 March 2018 restated 

DEPRECIATION 
Less: accumulated historic cost deprec'otion on asset recloss'fied to community assets 

2017/18 
£ 

257 

43.106.852 

43,107,109 

1.322.426 

437.569 

-1 

-3 

0 

44,867,100 

from other asset classes -77,064 

Less: historic cost depreciation for the year 2017-1 B -1,366,827 

Accumulated historic c est d epreclatlon on community assets as at 31 March 201 8 restate' -1,443,891 

Net book value ot community assets as at 31 March 201 B restated 43.423,209 

SUMMARY MOVEMENTS ON RESTATEMENT 2017/18 

COST OR VALUATION 
Carrying value of cam munify assets os of 31 March 20 17 os previously reported 
Write back cumulative capitol expenditure l Apri12007 to 31 March 2017 
Movement in 2017 I 1 8 

Net book value of community assets as at 31 March 2018 restated 

£ 

257 
43.106,852 

316,100 

43,423.209 

112 



BeHest CHy Council 
Group Movement In Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 201 9 

General Fund 
Summory 

£ 
Restated 

OtherFuna 
Balgnces end 

Reserves 

£ 

Capital Receipts 
Res~e 

£ 

Total Usable 
Reserves 

.£ 

Restated 

Total Unusable 
Reserves 

£ 

- - - - - - - - --

Total Council 
Reserves 

£ 
Restated 

Solanccosoi1April2017 20,985,750 27. 15.3 134 1,632457 49,771.341 482230021 532,001,362 

Movement In reserves 
during the year 
Surplus/ {Deficit! on the 

(17.743.656) (17.743.656) (1 7.7 43.656) 
provis'on of services 
Other Comprehensive 

23.892.284 23,892.284 
Income and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive 

[17,743,656) (17,743,656) 23,892.284 6,148,628 
Income and Expenditure 
Adiustments between 
accounting basis & 21.853,201 {276.792) 3, 107.000 24,683,409 (24.368,6071 314,802 
funding under regulations 

Net Increase berore 
transfers to Statutory and 4,109,545 (276,7'12) 3,107,000 6,939,753 [476,323) 6,463,430 
Other Reserves 

Transfers to I from 
Statutory and Other (1.430,134) 1.430,134 
li!eserves 

O ther movements 739.734 (65, 170) 674 564 (247,9871 426.577 

Increase/ Decrease In 
year 

3,419,145 1,088,172 3,107,000 7,614,317 (724,310) 6,890,007 

Balance as at 31 March 2018 24.404,895 - 28.241 306 4 739 457 .. - 57 385,658 · • 481,505 711 538.891.369 

Movement In reserves 
during the year 
Surp us/ (Deficit) on lhe 

( 18.469 ,670) (18,469,670) [18.469,6701 
p rovision of services 
O ther Comprehensive 

24,971 .471 24.971.471 .ncome and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive (18,469 ,670) (18,469,670) 24,971,471 6,501,801 
Income and Expenditure 
Adjustments between 
accounting basis & 18.744,640 (89.928) 400,000 19,054,712 ( 18,583,644} 471 .068 
funding under regulations 
Net Increase before 
transfers to Statutory and 274,970 (89,928) 400,000 585,042 6,387,827 6.972,869 
Other Reserves 
IIU[I)I~I~ 11.1 I 111.1111 

Statutory end Other 349,548 (349,548) 

Other movements 774,052 (8,058) 61.000 826,994 [304,7041 522.290 
Increase In year 1,398,570 (447,534) 461,000 1,412,036 6,083,123 7,495,159 

Balance os ol31 Morch 2019 - -- - 25.803.465 .. ·- ---~7.793 772 5 ?.00 457 58,797,694 487,588.634 546 366.528 
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Belfast City Council 
Group Comp rehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Nel ExpendliU11t Gross Net Expenditure 
Restated Rnlated 

SeiYk:e ExpenditUre Notes £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Stroteglc PoliCy & 

2 78.594.231 (11.644.878) 66.949.353 62655.671 (9.437.721) 53.217.950 
Resources 
City Growth & 

2 39095.072 (15.365. 940) 23.729. 132 36.703 673 (15.897,316) 20.806.357 
ReQenerallon 
People & Communities 2 112.535.363 (16.091.022) 96.444.341 106.581.903 (15. 984.609) 90.597.294 
Planning & Ucenclng 2 8.527144 (6.208.226) 2.318.918 7.835.696 (5.595.361) 2.240 335 

! • • . • • 

Olher Operating 
8 (30.080) (30.080) 5.166.932 5.166.932 

Expenditure 

Flnonclng ond Investment 
9 6.122.753 (13.984.884) (7.862.131) 10.651.076 (6.894.671) 3.756.405 

Income ond Expenditure 

l:rna.J.!;tt.rJ@b!J·f!t.t.rh•U~ tt•·UU ltOO:J!WiU ! JI:JI!M® ffij71fi·ti ~i);J•'tml lfkfl£f*il 
Taxation ond Non-Specific 

10 (91.633) ( 162. 988. 180) (163.079.863) (21 440) (158.020,177) (158.041.61 7) 
Grant Income 

(Surplus)/Detlclt on 
revoluotlon of non-current 11 (9 648 471) (24.906.284) 
assets 

Surplust(Deflclt) orislng on 
revaluation of ovoHoble· 27 
for-sole flnonclot assets 

Remeosurements of the 
Net Defined Benefit 21 (15.323.000) 1.014.000 
Uoblllty (~I) 

Olher Comprehensive Income and EJipenditure 

Total Comcrohenslve lncomo and Expenditure -. ·--~<" (6.501,!101) 



Belfast City Council • 
Group Bcllance Sheet os at 31 March 2019 

- - ----- ---- --- · No!c 31s!March2019 31stMorch2018 31stMorch2017 

Fixed Assets 
long Term Investments 

Investment in Associates end Joint Ventures 

Long Term Debtor; 
Contract Assots 

Short Term Investments 
Inventories 
Short Term Debtors 
Cosh end Cosh Equivalents 
Assets Held for Sole 
Contract Assets 
Contract Costs 

Bonk Overdraft 
Short Term Borrowing 
Short Term Creditors 
Provisions 
Contrccl Uobllltles 

£ 
750,563.883 

431,000 

603.659 

276,291 
16,367,024 
27.866,068 

266 607 
1,947,969 

4.000.000 
36,502814 
2.894,851 

R~stotcd Restated 

£ 
714.213.624 

433,000 

1.137,030 

326,164 
16,772.757 
14,490,997 

1,503.004 

4.158.529 
30,300,049 
2,906,973 

£ 
692.339,626 

445,585 

1.296,062 

295,715 
22,063,079 
11.052247 
3.197,000 

767.259 

163,482 
31,997,062 

2.584,680 

CURRE!lTUABIUTIES -~' .. 9l66:0 J 1.~65.~5: 3-t.7<5n~ 
-- -

long Term CreditoiS 50.386 60,848 82,707 
Provisions 1.789.315 1,749,239 1,716,737 
long Term Borrowing 58.888.981 32.604,494 36,444,276 
Other long Term Uobilities 146.360.942 136,947,942 125,832,942 
Contrcct Uoblli!Jes 
Donated Assets Account 430,001 10.001 10.001 
Copilot Grants Receipts in Advance 1.018.663 1.247.132 623.323 

toNG TERiv1liABILITIES 208.538.308 172,619.656 164,709,986 

hET ASSETS 546,286.~28 538.891.369 :i32.001.363 

USABlE RESERVES 
Capitol Receipts Rese!Ve 
Capitol Fund 
leisure Mobilisation Fund 
Other Balances and Rese!Ves 
General Fund 

UNUSABLE RESERVES 
Copilot Adjustment Account 
Revcluolion Rese!Ve 
Pensions ReseNe 
Accumulated Absences Account 
Provisions Discount Rote ReseNe 

5,200,457 
25,288,151 

1,441,702 
1,063,919 

25,803,465 

470,959,253 
164,611.507 

( 146,360,942) 
(1,357,825) 

(263,159) 

4,739,457 
25,669.445 

1.704,334 
867,527 

24.404,895 

460.487,377 
159.528,493 

(136.947,942) 
{1 ,344.230) 

(217.987) 

1,632,457 
24,567,205 

1.945.000 
640,929 

20,985,750 

470.929.510 
138.506.289 

(125.832.942) 
( 1.37 4.835) 

- --1$7.~8-B 82 4 •131.505.7. 1 482.230.022 

NET WORTH - 546,386.528 538.891.369 532 001 .363 I 
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Belfast City Council 
Group Cash Flow Statement at 31 Marc:h 2019 

- -- -- - -- - - - --

- Nolc 2018119 2017/18 

Net Deficit on the provision of services 

Adjustment for non-cash movements 

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services the! ore investing end financing activities 

__ £ 

( 18,469,670) 

48.275.099 

(3.393.017) 

£ 
(17.743.656) 

44.163.622 

(5.709.582) 

- -- --- ---- --- - - - --- -

N~t cash flows from operating activities 26 412.4 12 20 710.384 

Cosh flows from Investing Activities (39,163.2991 (17.426.8981 

Net Cosh flows from Financing Activities 26.125.958 155.264 

-- -- - -- - - -- - -- - - - -

Net inc.rcasa or decrease in cosh and cosh equivalents 13.375,071 3 438 750 

Cosh end cosh equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 14.490.997 11,052.247 

Cosh and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 27.866.068 - 14,490 997 
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Belfast City Coundl 
Notes to the Group Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Gl Group Accounts 

The Group Accounting Policies ore the some os the Counol policies and hove not been repeated again ·n 
these Notes. The exception to this is In relation to Retirement Benefits wh-ch hove been treated in BWUH limited 
os o defined contribution scheme os the liob lilies of the NILGOSC scheme remain with Belfast City Council and 
hove been disclosed In Belfast City Council's financial statements. 

S'nce there are no significant changes to the Consolidated Group Balance Sheet os compared to the Council's 
Balance Sheet. only those notes affected by group transactions hove been included. 

G2 Combining Entitles 
Belfast Waterfront Ulster Hall Umlled ( BWUH ltd) 

Belfast Waterfront Ulster Hall Umited is a company Incorporated under the terms of the Companies Acts to 
operate the Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall. The Authority Is the principal shareholder in the company holding 
1 ordinary£ 1 shores and representing 100% of the issued shore capitol. Under accounting standards, the 
Authority has o contro~lng interest in this company. The financial results for the company hove been included in 
the group accounts as o subsidiary. 

Net assets of the company were £6.5k at 31 March 2019. The profit on ordinary activities before taxation for the 
period to 31 March 2019 was £19.9 k. No dividend payments were due to, or received by, the Authority in 
respect of its investment. 

As noted In Note 20, the pension liability of BWUH Limited is Included in the pension liability of Belfast City 
Council. 

The latest set of accounts is for the year to 31 March 2019 has on unqualified audit certifcote. 

BELTElllP 

For the purposes of economic regeneration os port of the City Centre Regeneration objectives the Council 
mode a financial contribution in the form of a loon of now totalling £3.436.859 os at year ended 31 March 
2019, to Belle! LLP relating to the redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph building. This contribution represents 
46% of the net assets of Belle! LLP which hove been 'ncluded in the Counol's group balance sheet and the 
breakdown of the net assets is Included In Note 29 Jo'nt Arrangements. 

Gas Pension Fund 

The asset of £21.000 In respect of the Gas Pension Fund Is disclosed and recognised :n ae:fast City Council's 
balance sheet and Note 20 Retirement Benefits disclosures. The Group bolonce sheet has Included the assets 
ond liabilities giving rise to this asset: 

£ 

Long term assets 431.725 

Current assets 633,368 

Long term liabilities 1,044.093 

Net asst 21,000 

The Council has not consolidated its interests in Active Belfast Limited, Belfast Gasworks Management Co Ltd 
and Arc21 os the Council's shore of these balance sheets is not deemed materia to the group accounts at this 
point in time. 

Financial Impact of combination 

The effect of the inclusion of the subsidiaries and associates In 2018/19 was to increase the Council's reserves 
and net assets by £6.5k representing the net asset In the consolidating entities. 
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G3 Adjustments between on Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 
Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be 
exc:Juded when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year. 

- ---·- ----- - - -- -- 2018/ 19 - - -- . - -_-·-2017/i B- -~ 

Notes £ £ £ 

Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be 
excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year: 
Impairments (losses & reversals) 
of non-current assets 

Derecognit on (other than 
disposal) of non-current assets 
Revaluation 
increases/decreases taken to 
Surplus/DefiC:t on the Prov'.sion 
of Services 

Depreciation charged in t~:>e 
year on non-current assets 
funded from cap· tal under 
!tatute 
Carrying amount of non current 
assets sold 

Proceeds from the sole of PP&E, 
'nvestment property end 
'ntangible assets 

Difference between f.nonce 
costs calculated on on 
accounting baS:s and finance 
costs colcu'ated in accordance 
with statutory requirements 

Net charges mode for 
retirement benefits in 
accordance w'th IAS 19 

Direct revenue finoncng of 
Cop'tol Expenditure 

Capitol Grants and Donated 
Assets Receivable and Applied 
in year 

Capital Grants Recelvab'e and 
Unapplied in year 

Rates Claw-Back Reserve 

Adjustments In relation to Short­
term compensated absences 

Adjustments in relation to Less!lr 
Arrangements 

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 
Adjustment 
Amounts not Included In the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement but 
required by statute to be 
Included when determining the 
Movement on the General Fund 
Balance for the year 

Statutory Provision for the 
financing of Capitol Investment 

Employers contributions 
payable to the NILGOSC end 
retirement benefits payable 
direct to pensioners 

( 6,312, 957) 

18.382.926 12.069.969 

350.000 

(430.080) (80.080) 

39,630.000 

(9,239,567) 

(2. 919 .677) 

(133.188) 

13,595 

57.704 

(5.874,1 t6) 

( 14.78()()00} 

3,291.888 

16.640.449 19,932.337 

8,612.078 

(3.445, 146) 5.166.932 

24.417,000 

(5.518, 199) 

(2.541.228) 

t30.605} 

26,160 

217.987 

(5,876,1 83) 

(13,941.000) 
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BeHast City Council 
Notes to the Group Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

G4 mcd A~e1s 

a 
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Net look Values 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 101.444.001 418,784 515 5,261,436 ' 17,575,581 44,100,536 48 ,154,248 5.689.001 641,009,318 9.025.087 650,034.405 j 

uo 



b 

Ul 



Net look Values 
Balance as at 31 March 2018 ·Jo0.840.501 4\4,305,914 5,453.928 16 640,626 43.423,209 25,304.135 7.1 29 001 • 613.097,314 8,596,083 ' l· ·, 621.693 397, 

Bolanceasol311.\atch2019 101.444001 418.784.515 5,261.436 17.575581 44100,536 48154.248 5689,001 641.009,318 9.025087 .;.... :i.;'· 650,034,405 : 
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l!elfast City Council 
Notes to the Group Financial statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

lnlongible A~sels ' 201_8/19 2011/18 

Balance at start of year. 
Gross carrying amounts 
Accumulated amortisation 
Net carrying amount at start of year 
Additions 
Assets reclassified os held for sale 
Revaluation Increases or decreases 
Impairment losses recognised or reversed directly in the Revaluation Reserve 
Impairment losses recognised or reversed directly in the Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of Services 
Amortisation for the period 
Other Chanaes 

•t.:Tifiie' 

!. 

t9.208.176 
t8,651.234 

556.942 

(138.892) 

··••:Itl.1t 

£' 

18,990.754 
18,530,885 

459,869 
172.080 

(t20,349) 
45,3<42 
··-·'· 

Investment Properlles ·• !': ·. > 2018/ 19 2017/l B 

Balance at start of the year 
Additions 
Disposals 
Net gains/lasses from fair value adjustments 
Transfers to/ from inventories 
Transfers to/ from property plonl and equipment 
Other changes 
l;t:JtmWi!m'JIGW.M•IA 4 ~~~ 

£ 
91.963,283 

173,146 
(350.000) 
7.025,000 

1,300,000 

f. 
96,828,108 

131.344 

(4,996.169) 

Investment Property 2018/ 19 2017/18 

Industrial Estates 
Commercial Units 

~ 
73,600,000 
26.311,429 

£ 
72.300.000 
19,663,283 

Balance ol end of lhc year 100.111 429 91,963,283 

Ill 



GS 
(I 

b 

c 

d 

- - --

Employee Costs and Member Allowances 
Staff Costs 20T8/l9 2017/18 

"' Salaries and Wages l 70.725.504 l 68.177,410 
Employers NIC l 6,536.2031 6.321.447 
Employers Superannuation I 14,521.573 1 13.439.009 : 

Total staff costs 
------

91,763,280 87,937,866 

The above staff costs include the costs of voluntary redundancies in 2018/19. These costs total £2.003.028 and 
are disclosed separately in Tab e 4 of the Remuneration Report. In addit'on, agency costs during the year 
amounted to £4,818,572 (2017/18 £4.649,57 6). 

The Counc l's current contribution rote to NILGOSC scheme is 19% plus a 2'Jbdeficit recovery contribution. At 
the lost octuria voluaron. doted 31 March 2016. the Funds assets os a whole were sufficient to meet 96% of 
the liobiares accrued up to that dale. 

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents futrt me equivalent employees 

-

Average Number of Employees 20T8/l9 2017/18 - -·- FTE li1C1 -
Strategic Policy & Resources 627 661 
City Growth & Regeneration 289 316 
People& Communities 1.225 1.239 
Planning and Ucencing 145 147 

Total Number 2,286 2,363 

2018/19 2017/18 
Actual :Numbers! 

FulHime numbers employed 2.029 2.086 
Port-time numbers employed 333 354 

Tolol Number 2.362 2.440 

Senior Employees' Remuneration 2018/19 2017/1 B 
£ 

£50,001to £60.000 52 50 
£60.001to £70.000 15 10 
£70.001 to £80.000 6 11 
£80,001 to £90.0000 4 2 
£90.001 to £100.000 6 4 
£100.001 to £110.000 4 2 
£110.001 to £120.000 I -
£130.001 to £140.000 - I I 

£140.001 to £150.000 1 - I 

Tolol Number -· 89 - --- 80 

124 



G6 Debtors·--- -- ---- -------- -- --------- -. - - -
a long Term Debtors 2018/ 19 2017/ 18 

' £ £ -- - -- - ----· - -------~---------- - -- - --- - -
Government Departments - -
Other Councils - -
Public corporations and trading funds - -
Bodies external to general government - -
Employee cor loons 59.591 59.587 
Revenue Grants - -
Capitol Grants - -
Interest Receivable - -
Capitol Debtors - -
loons and advances - . 
Finance lease debtors - . 
Trade debtors 285.208 736.633 
NIHE loons 258.860 340,810 
Other . -
Impairment of loons end receivables . . 
Contract Receivables - . ' 

Total long-Term Debtors-~-----------_ -----------603.659 ___ U37.030 

--- - - - --- - - -- - - - - -

b Short Term Debtors -- -- 2018119 2017/18 
-. - --- £ _______ £ 
Government Departments 611.491 320,271 
Other Councils 58.122 159,488 
Public corporations and trading funds 
Bodies external to general government 
N1HE loons 81.950 76.950 
Employee cor loons 56,516 58.110 
Revenue Grants 5,933.912 3.825.967 
Capitol Grants 1,733.211 1.411.696 
Interest Receivable 
Capital Debtors 
Value Added Tax 1.848.860 1.978.620 
Prepoyments 3.527.783 4.480.065 

- I 
I 

1.629.395 

Finance lease debtors 
Other 
Trade receivables 

1.726.399 
1.072.374 

3. 192.000 1; 

Impairment loss- Trade receivables (283.594) (454.252] 
Contract Receivables 1.947.969 1.597.451 

Total Short-Term Debtors -- 18,314.993 --_ ---18,275,761-

Total Debtors ·- ~- .r -~· - ... ' 18,918.652 - 19,412,791 
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G7 
Q 

b 

- -- ---- - -- -- -- --- -

Creditors 
Short Term Crcdrfors 2018/19 2017/18 

£ £ 
- --- -- - -- ---· ------ -- -- . -

Government Departments 1.818,188 1,673.415 : 
Other Councils 13,0t0 17,826 I 
Public corporations and trading funds - -
Bodies external to general government - -
Rates clowback 100,000 350,000 
VAT - -
Remuneration due to employees 583,873 331.117 
Accumulated Absences 1,357,825 1.344.230 
Receipts In advance 4,473.249 4,440,803 
Trade creditors 2.499.735 2.902,153 
Loon Interest 331.903 282.976 
Capitol Creditors 1.450,637 2.375.471 
Creditor Accruals 23,874,394 16,582.058 
Contract Poyobles - -

- --------- ------

Total Stlort Term Creditors -- ----- -- - - - 36.502.814 - --
30,300,049 

long Term Credrlors 2018/19 2017/ 18 

£ £ -- -- - -
Government Departments - . 
Other Councils - -
Public corporations and trading funds - -
Bodies external to general government - -
Rotes clowbocl<: - -
Remuneration due to employees - -
Accumulated Absences - -
Receipts in advance - - I 

Trade creditors 
I - - I 

Other 50,386 60,848 
Contract Payables - -

-- - - - - - - - - -- - - -

To:l11 Long Term C!cdr !ors 50 :ifl~ <>C·.e~e 

Toto! Creditors 36 553 200 30 360.697 



G8 Other cash flow disclosures 
a Analysis of AdJustments to Surplus/DellcH on the Provision of Services 

t::. -
Depreckltlon 
lmpo~ment & d ownward revaluotlons (& non-sale 
derecognlttons) 
Amortisation (Included with depreciation above) 
(lncreose)/Decreose In Inventory 
(lncreose)/Decreose In Debtors 
Increase/( decrease) In Impairment provision for bad 
debts 
lncreasei{Decreose) In Creditors 
lncreose/(Decreose) In Interest Creditors 
Payments to NILGOSC 
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 
P<JC/WlP wrttten off to Net Cost of serviCes 
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 

Movement In value of Investment properties-Included 
above In Impairment & downward revoluotlons (& 
non-sole derecognttlons) 

Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 

Contract Costs 

Contract Assets 

Contract UobUttles 

Deferred revenue 

equivalents) end long-term Investments Oncludes 
Investments In associates. Joint ventures and 
subsidiaries) 
Proceeds from the sole of PP&E. Investment property 
and lnton lble assets 

Capitol grants Included In "Toxotlon & non-specific 
rant Income' 

b Cash and Cash Equivalents 

CoSh and Bank balances 
Short Term Deposits (conSidered to be Cash 
Short Term Investments (considered to be CaSh 
Bank Overdraft 

J 

mil 

lll!mi1 

., . ~. 
t'{l :, ...... lo'HII'I.II• 

£ £ 
18.382,926 16.640.449 

(6.312.957) 3.291.888 
- -

49.874 (30.449) 
664.797 4,676.832 

(170.658) 36.777 
6.178.708 ( 1.688.267) 

- -
24.85(J.(XX) 10.476.000 

350.000 8.6 12.078 
- -

4.292.409 2.148.314 

. -
(10.000) 

- -
- -
- -
- -

l'I:WIJ-""11• • r r •r.'ILI'.,..i'JI 

276.792 

(430.080) (3.445.146) 

(3.052.865) (2.541. 228) 

l:f:J.jJ~l(!: • 

mmYm lo'JIII'I.II. 

£ £ 

10.866,068 5.990.997 
17.000.000 8.500.000 . . 

. -
-.,, •• f ..... ,, .~;J lf'l'l • 11.' ~IIJ 
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c 

d 

Cash flows frof!tlnvesting Activities 
£ 

40.481.902 21.297.412 

431.000 
1.733.342 

(430.080) (3.445. 146) 

(3,052.865) (2.541 .228) 

Events otter the Balance Sheet Dote 

Due to the McCioud/Sorgeont ruling on pensions account disclosures, the past service c ost of the Councils pension scheme has 
materially changed Revisions have been mode to all relevant prime statements and notes based on on updated IAS 19 
Accounting Results Schedule prepared by the Council's actuary AON Hewltt 

Date of oufhollsollon lor Issue 

The Ch et Anaf'CiOI Officer authorised these fnonciol statements for Issue on 30 September 2019 


